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Guardian Media Group plc

Strategic Report

The directors presént their strategic report, the report of the directors and the audited finaricial statéments for the
‘Group, comprisingthe Guardian Media Group plc (the "Coipany") and its subsidiaries ("the Group"), for the
year ended .2 April 2023,

Activities and business review

Guardian Media Group plc’ (GMG) is the owner of the Guardian ' News and’ Medla business, one of the world's
leading news publishing organisations.

GMG's sdlé shareholder is'The Scott Trust Limited (‘STL’).

STL controls a portfolio of investments which are held in an-endowment fund to generate returns-to secure the
long-term future of the:Guardian.. During the year, STL began a transfer of the-endowiment fund from GMG to a
new subsidiary of STL; The Scott Trust Endowment Limited (‘'STEL'). The. <purpose. of this transfer is to better
reflect the separate management of the operatmg business and the inivestment activities. This follows on from the
Scott Trust governance review announced in Aptil 2021,

Further .information -on ° the actlvmes of the Group ‘can be found on the GMG website;
wWWW., theguardlan .com/gmg.

Strategy and future outlook -

“The Guardian’s mtematlonally-focused journalism continues to. reach more readers every day with thriving
editions anid products across the globe. Continued-support from: readers around the'world is real testament to the
appetite for progressive. journalism that is open to all, funded by many, beholden to no one,

It was an unforgettable year for revelatory and impaciful Guardian journalism. It was a-year where Guardian
reporting rocked -governmients,: sparked inquirieg, and helped to bring clarity to some of the biggest crises of our
timeés - from war in Ukraine to-the climate-emergency. Our journalists were on the:ground to cover key events
mc‘ludmg the. death of Britain’s' longest-serving monarch, the appointment of tliree different. British prime
ministers, and elections from Australia to- Brazil. The Guardian’s multimedia journalism' continued to attract
global audiences, with- significant success for our podecasts-and newsletters. And we: continued to lead the way-
with. mvestlgatwe reportmg holding the world's most powerful people and companies, to account, .including
exposing dubious pracnces at Credit Suisse and Uber.

In the yedr to March 2023, the Guardian recorded 1.4 billion: average: monthly page views to its digital platforms
-and 148 million average monthly unique browsers.

Alongside our journalism the commercial teams'are integral in making sure we.reach our audxences in bigger-and
better ‘ways. In September,-Anna Bateson joined the organisation as chief' execunve, having prevxously worked for
GMG in a number-of executive roles. from 2016-2020:

Our international growth continues - during the year international revenues grew to £93.2m and now account for
35% of revenues overall following sustained investment in journalism and dlgltal capabilities. Guardian Australia
and Guardian US continue to go from strength to strength and we will invest in both markets to:drive further
growth..

Our reader revenue strategy has continued to mature. We are now one of the top readér-supported news
publishers in the world, all while ensunng our journalism remains open. to all. Overall digital reader revenues
gréw 7.6% to-£81.9m, with over 50% coming from outside the. UK. .

Overall revenue increased by £8.6.million (3:4%) to £264.4 million through continued growth from digital reader
revenues, which now- make up 31% of overall revenues. However, the economic environment continues to be
cha.l]engmg, particularly in the UK, where. our ddvertising and print revenue.streams faced sustained structural
challenges.
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Guardian Media Group-plc

Strategic Report.

In Deceniber 2022, the Group suffered a highly sophisticated cyber attack which caused significant disruption
across the busmess for several months. Asa result of outstariding commitment and much hard work from staff,
and-given our established business contipuity plans and- processes, we managed to sustain the publication of our
journalism and recover all our core systems. We are engaged in a progtamme:of work to further strengthen the
agility, resilience and security of our technology estate.

Inflation continues to put ptessute on our business costs, our supply chain and the cost of kvmg for our staff and
mahy supporters. Despite this, with the support of the Scott Trust; we have continued to invest in curjournalism
and our'commercial capabfhtles to drive future growth.

A combination of revenue growth, tareful cost management, and mves”tments in Joumahsm and, our digxtal

million as. planned compared to a cash inflow of £6.7 million in 2022,

‘In 2023 GMG embarked on a new three-year strategy to build the Guardxans position as one of the world’s
Teading quality news publisheis - becoming more global, more. dlgltal ‘with ‘more paying supporters: and
producing more world-class journalism. While the:economic. outlook in the UK remains challenging we remain.
well positioned to invest in journalism and commercial capabilities to drive future impact and ensure the
Guardian continues to provide quality, trustworthy reporting that is open to all.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group’s-apptoach to risk ' mapagement is contained in the Corporate Governance Report which can be found
on the GMG website; www.theguardian.com/gmg within the annual financial Teports section. An assessment of
‘the. principal risks facing the Group has been carried out, includifig emerging risks, that would threaten its
business model, future performance,.solvency ‘or liquidity. The'risks-outlined below are those:that we believe will
have the greatest near or medium term impact on our strategic objectives, operational plans and reputation.

The Groupris at risk of suffering significant business interruption as a result of a secutity vulnerability or'breach
of privacy. Mitigations to these risks include experienced information security and data protection teams, robust
pohcxes, systems and. procedures as-well as mature incident management plans. The risks from cyber attacks:
continue as threat- actors seek to exploit any vulnerabilities. As noted above, the Group suffered a highly
sophisticated cyber attack in December 2022 which-was managed and responded to through business continuity
plans and processes.

This distupted a number of operational processes; for example, the time taken to.pay suppliers during this period
increased (as reported onthe Government Payment Practices site).

The Group is exposed to externial uncertainties. mcludmg those atising from economic ‘conditions. These. will
continue to impact our revenues and costs; ongoing competmon for-subscription Tevenues; and pressures on
futire advertising revenues.arising from challenging macroeconomic conditions atid platforin policy changes.

The Group is mitigating these risks through placing journalism and- réades relatioriships at the heart of its:
business strategy The. strategy includes realigning its operdling. modél to reflect a reader-centric. strategy;
incréased investment.in journalism and.product offerings, development of mdustry leading data capabﬂmes and.
continued development of deep, personalised anid trusted relationships with our readers. A three year investment
plan has been agreed by the board which supports the following strategic. pillars; knowing our -audience;
accelerating reader reévenues; growing internationally; realising greater value from our readers; and transforming
our technology, capabilities-and culture.

We continue to'mitigate risks associated with investment peiformance through diversified medium and long term
investments-managed by specialist fund managers.

We continue to maintain a. strong focus on our ESG ambmons, including. mamtammg our B-Corp status,
significant diversity and inclusion initiatives, and our ongoing commitment to thé environment, both through.oyr
journalism and our climate pledge.

Finally; trust in our brand and reputation is also critical to our ongoing success. Any event or incidenit:affecting

our reputation'could impait our strategic objectives. To mitigate this risk, the Group adheres to comprehensive
edxtonal and commercial legal policies, and manages its reputation proactively throughout the business:
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Guardian Media Group plc¢
‘Strategic Report

Viability statement
The Board has reviewed the prospects of the Group over the three-year period to March 2026 taking accourit of
the Group’s strategic plans, a number of ﬁnancxal scenarios and further stress testing based on its principal risks.

Based on the results of these procedures, and considering the ongoing support from STL, the Directors have a
-high expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over
the three-year period ending March 2026.

Operating and financial performance
The tesults-for the Group are set out'in the conséolidated income.statement.

The current financial yearis a 52 week period (2022: 53 weeks).

Key indicators of financial performance are:

2023 ‘2022

Em £m
Total revenue ' 264.4 255.8
Digital reader revenue 819 76.1
Adjusted operating profit . (21.3) '11,.-7
Adjusted net'operating cash flow (21.0) 6.7

Groilp revenue increased 3.4% to .£264.4 million (2022. E255.8 million) driven by ‘continued growth in dlgltal
reader revenues which increased by 7.6% to £81.9-million (2022: £76.1 million). As a'result of our investment in
international expansion, we-increased our revenue from outside the UK by 17% to £93.2mm; now-35% of total
revenue (2022::31%).

Adjusted operatmg profit represents non-exceptional statutory operating profit adjusted to exclude depreciation
and amortisation but include depreciation on right-of-use assets-arid interest on leases - which relate to property
costs inéurred by the group: Management believes this measure most accu rately reflects the-underlying operating
performance of the business. A reconciliation of this measuré is provided in note 6.

Cash flow

Adjusted net operatmg cash flow is the primary measire for the Group in terms of financial sustainability. This
‘represents.cash items that imanagement consider to be’key in the operations of the business. This is-calculated as
statutory net cash fiow ad;usted for the following items: exclusion of 16ans t6 the Group's parent company and
fellow subsidiary STEL for mvestmg purposes, transactions/development and cash 1nJectxons/thhdrawa]s
relating to the group endowment find investments all of which are presented as other cash items. A reconciliation
of this measure is provided in note 6.

In 2022/23, there was an adjusted net operating cash outflow of £21.0 million (2022: £6.7m inflow). This
moyement reflects planned.investment decisions taken to bolster the international reach and. impact of our
journalisin-and drive future revenue growth..

Other iniflows and outflows are detailed in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Endowment fiind

The Guardian is supported by dn endowment fund, corisisting of diversified investmerits managed by a number of
specialist fund managers. The investments include global and emerging markets. equity, fixed- income, hedge
funds and private equity and venture capital finds. Whilst the investments are a mixture of UK and non-UK
assets, they are all held by UK tax resident. companies which are subject to UK tax laws and regulations on'the
income and realised gains arising from all the investments held.

The total value of the Scott Trust endowment fund decreased from £1,291.8 million t6 £1,236.8 ‘million. This
decrease reflects the operating cash requirements of GMG and the underlying performance of the fund. The value,
of the endowment fund held by GMG-decreased from £1,229.9 million to. £747.3 million. This deciease is largely
attributable to the transfer of endowment assets to. STEL (valued at £434.9 million).
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Guardian Media Group plc
Strategic Report

Taxation

The Group has subsidiaries in the UK, 'US and Australia and is- subject to the tax Jaws and fegulations in these
‘countries. The subsidiaries.also pay tax in certain other overseas territori€s where business activities take place.

The net deferred ‘tax liability in the balance sheet is £3.0'million (2022: £37.6 million). The net position consists
of deferred tax assets of £16,1 million (2022::£19.1 million) relating to -accelerated capltal allowances, £nil
relating toshort term timing differences:(2022: £3.1 million) and £24.3 million (2022: £23.9 million) relating to
tax losses available to. be tised in the future, less deferred tax liabilities of £43, 4 million (2022: £83.7 million)
arising on investmerits at fair value through profit and loss.

Other balance sheet items
The.Group had net assets-of £1,248.4 miillion at 2 April 2023 (2022: £1,261.2 million).

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting :

The Group lias cominitted to ¢liminating two thirds of its; greenhouse gas emissions between 2020 and 2030. In
May 2023, GMG completed external validation, of its reduction target with the Science-Based Targets initiative
(SBTi).

The Group measures its overall emissions dccording to'the Greenhousé Gas Protocol Corporate Accounting and:
Reporting Standard, a comprehenswe global standardised framework to measure and manage greenhouse gas
(GHG) emissions, We continue to work with Green Element; an énvironinental consultancy, to measure and
report our global GHG emissions.

In this report, GMG reports the energy and GHG emissi/ons figures according to the UK government mandatory
specification Strearilined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR).

As a parent of'a large, unquoted company, the following activities- and associated GHG emissions have been
included in the submission forthe UK business.

Stope1:

- Fue] used in company vehicles

- Natural gas'or.othér heating fuels: only utlhsed at. GMG’s.London office, not Manchester:

Scope 2:.

‘~Purchased electricity (Jocation-based and market ‘based methods are included, as outlined in the GHG Protocol
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Sta ndard.)

Scope 3:

--Business travel in employee-owned or hired vehicles

-'Emissions from excavation-and transport of fuels, aiid losses from the UK energy gtid

‘Types of GHGs included, as applicable: carbon dioxide (CO2), nitrous oxide- (N20), methane (CH4),
hydrofluorocarbons: (HFCs), perﬂuorocarbons (PFCs), sulphur hexafluoride (SF6), and nitrogen trifluoride
(NF3). The greenhouse gas emissions were calculated using UK government 2022 conversion factors, expressed
as tonnes of carbon dioxide eqmvalent (tCOz2e).

“Total emissions by the UK business have decreased ‘due.to lower.gds corisumption ‘for.heating and coolmg the
London office. This. is due'to the ending of Cov1d—19 safety protocols that required increased air flow in the
‘building, The electrxcny supply to the London office is.certified 100% renéwable and the scope 2 market-based
‘carbon intensity is therefore zero in line with the GHG Protocol giidance. There.are still some emissions from:
Well-to-Tank/Transrmsswn & Distribution losses from. renewable sources accounted for i in Scope 3. At the time
of reporting, the landlord of the London office could only provide éstimated electricity usage for the last 6 months
of the reporting year.onal data and applying the miore specific DEFRA kilowatt-hour conversion factors (e.g.
small, medium,.large car), whereas ‘previously the *kilowatt-liour convetsion:for an average car was used.
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Guardian Media Group plc
Strategic Report

Energy saving strategies implemented at GMG’s London office in-réporting yearinclude:

+ Replacement Building Management System (BMS) in GMG's deinise- ’
» Recalibration of the central BMS:

» Altering BMS nmmgs for increased energy efficiency

. Increasmg sétpoint of server rooms

Prior ‘year comparatives of elecmclty and gas consumption and corresponding emissions have been restated, to

reflect actual data replacing an estimate for the final month of the year. In addition, a retrospectlve correction to
- the 2021-22 transport fiel consumption-and corresponding emissions lias been applied. This is due to receiving
additional data and .applying the more specific DEFRA kilowatt-hour conversion factots (e.g. small, ‘medium,
Jlarge car), whereas previously the kilowatt-houtr conversion for an average carwas used

Restated
2023 2022

Energy consumption used (KWh) ) .

Elecn'iclty : 3;,673,118 3,649,197
Gas ‘ 1,400,454 2,434,724
Transport fuel o 155,734 130,230
Other energy sources ' g - -
‘Emissions (tCO'z,e)

Scope 1 .

Emissions from combustion of gas ' 255.6 4459
Emissions:from coimbustion of fuel for transpott purposes oo - -
Scope 2

Emissions from purchased electricity - location based © 7103 774:8
Emissions from purchased electricity - market based 1n.2 63
Scope 3

Emissions from business travel in rental cars or employee vehicles where ) .
company.is responsible for purchasmg the fuel 373 315
Emissions from upstream. transport and distribution losses and’

excavation and transport of fuels - location based 304.2 3731
iEm'issio-ns from upstream transport and distribution losses and 114.9. 87.3
excavation and transport of fuels- market based . "
TOTAL location-based ‘ " 1,307:5 1,625.4
TOTAL market-based 4191 5711
Intensity

Revenue £m (Global) ; 264.4. 2658
;ngiansity ratio: tCO2e ffom.Scope 1, 2 and 3 (fuel for business travel only) 1.60 " a.00

m .
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Guardian Media Group plc
Strategic Report

Section 172 of the Companies Act

The Directors of Guardian Media Group ple (including principal UK subsidiary Guardian News & Media Limitéd)
must act in-accordance with legally prescribed duties. These duties are detailed in ttie Companies Aet 2006 and
iniclude, in Section 172, the requirement that a director of a company must act in the way they consider, in good
faith, would most likely promote the success of the company fot the benefit of its members.as a whole, and in
domg so have regard ( amongst other matters) to:

» the likely consequences of any decisions in the long'term;

« the interests of the'company’s employees;

« the-need to foster the company’s busmess,re]atlonshlps with suppliers, customers and others;

» the.impact of the company’s operations.on the community and environment;

» the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and
» the need to act fairly.as between members of the company.

Examples'of how the Directors take:these matters into account include the following:

The -deep connection we have with readers has enabled us'to develop a growing network of supporters who
contribute findncially to the-Guardian and. ‘they rightly expect that-our commercial ‘operations’ uphold the same;
standards as we do-in our journalism.

We continue to take proactive steps to make.a posmve impact for staff, readers and the wider community, across
all aress of out business, including envirorimenial sustainability:

Our headline sustamabihty target-is to achieve an absolute reduction. of two thirds of greenhouse gas emissions
from our operations and supply chain by 2030. We-are currently well on track to achieve this target which has.
been independently assessed and validated by the Science-Based Targets initiative (SBT).

We are- currently in the process of. renewing our B-corp certification and expect to have our latest accredltatlon
confirmed later in the year,

Staff across the company afe committéd to helping the Guardian make a positive impact, The Group engages with.
employees frequenitly; including through regular company-wide briefings on Guardian strategy and business
performance. We have a number of forums-for two-way dialogue between leaders and-employees on issues that
matter most to staff. These include an employee forum, a diversity and-inclusion forum and a remuneration.
consultation forum.

As part of our ongoing commitment to staff we regularly assess and evaluate our employment policies to ensure
they remain comprehensive.and competitive, Followirng- staff feedback and 2 defailed review, we made a number
.of enhancements and updates to our UK policies, with a pamcular emphasis on further support for women and
parents in the workplace. This included enhanced maternity, paterhity, shared. parental and adoption leave
-entitlemients and new baby loss and menopause policies. Annual holiday entitlement is now aligned across the
company in line with our pay principles as part of-our commitinent to address legacy policy differences wherever
possible.

Hybnd working, practxces, brought in following the Covid-19 pandemic, continue to.be. welcomed by: staff. We
continue 'to prioritise good: mental health' and -wellbeing, providing: learning and development, training ard
workshops to support staff.

The Group s Race Steering Committee, chaired by the chief executive arid editor-in-chief, and ‘composed of
Guardian staff from around the world, mohitors performance in relation to our race action plan:and holds senior
executives to account for actions.

We have clear plans in place t6 help us work towards our diversity and inclusion goals in each of our office

locations - the UK, US- and Australia. This includes race action plans in the UK-arid US, and cultural diversity
plans in Australia, as well as mentoring schemes and training for all employees, including on anti-racism.
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Guardian Media Group ple
Strategic Report

In the UK, we published our most recent equality report including gender pay. gap data in September 2022. In the
US, we share transparent gender pay data with our'staff on aii dnnual basis, and in Australla we submit.an-annual
report o the' Workplace Gender Equality Agency (WGEA). .

In 2022/23 our Positive Action Scheme‘in editorial returned after a two year break (as a result of the pandemic)
and also celebrated its 20 yearanniversary during which time over 250 people have taken part.

" The schemé provides placements to individuals from Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic backgrounds and people
with disabilities considering a career in Joumahsm We also reintroduced our paid-Creative. Access mternshlp.
scheme in the UK whiich provides roles in commer¢ial departiments for groups under-represented in the creative
industries.

The Group continues to engage regularly with Guardian and Observer readers through live events which bring

our journalism to life both in-person and virtually, letters pages, moderated comments ‘on our-digital platforms,
_ and an ifidependent readers’ editor.

On behalf of the Board

Annd Bateson
Chief Exécutive

g July 2023

Guardian Media Group plc
Reglstered in England and Wales No.00094531
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Guardian Media Group plc . -

: Dixféct,ors' Report

The directors present their report and the: audlted consohdated financial statements for the year ended 2 April
2023.

Employee involvement

The Group systematically provides employees with information on matters of concern to them, consulting them
or their representatives regularly, so that their views can be taken into account when-making decisions that are
likely to affect their interests. Employee inivolvement in the Group ‘is encouraged, as -achieving a common
awareness on the part of all employees of the financial and economic factors affecting the Group plays a major
role in mdintaining it. The Group encourages the involvement of eniployees by meéans of regular communication
programmes. to- the Group as a whole delivered by senior management, frequent internal e-mail and intranet
updates and quarterly all'staff financial results briefings.

The Group is committed to a working environment where-our staff, clients and partners aré treated equally. We
aspire thdt our Group staffing at all levels reflects our values, based on equal opportunmﬁ for all employees,
irrespective_of gender, race, religion, disability, social background age, sexual Orientdtion, pregnancy &
parenthood, gender reassignment or marital status. The Group gives full and fair consideration-to applications for
employment from disabled. persons, having regard to their pamcular dptitudes dnd abilities. Appropriate
arrangements ‘are’made for the continued employment and training, career development and promonon of
disabled persons employed by the Group. If members of staff become disabled we support individuals to continue
in employment, either in the same role or an alternative posmon, with appropriate adjustments and retraining
providéd as necessary.-

Ownership

Guardian Media Group plc is a public limited company mcorporated in England and Wales and all the ordinary
shares ate owned by The Scott Trust Limited. The-Company is.domiciled in England and Wales and.its registered
address is PO Box 68164, Kings. Place, 90 York Way, London NiP 2AP.

Directorsof the Group

The directors, who held office during the period and up to the date of sighing, unless otherwise stated were as
follows: ‘

Charles Gurassa - Chair

'Kathan;ne Viner

Keith Underwood

Anra Bateson - Chief executive (appointed 21 September 2022)

Emily Bell

Ete Davies (appointed i December 2022)

Jennifer Duvalier (resigned 30 April 2023)

Anders Jensen (resigned 31 August 2022)

Yasmin Jetha

Nigel Morris(resigned.1 September: 2022)

Rene Rechtman

Baroness Gail Rebuck

~ MaryAnn Sieghart Y
Coram Williams

The followirig director was appointed after the pericd end:

Trei Brundrett (appointed 1 July 2023)

No director had any material transactions with the Group other than those'set outmnote 1-and note 29.
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Guardian Media Group plc
Directors" Report

Dividends
On 21 March 2023-the GMG Board. declared a dividend of 44.4p (2022: 44.4p) per share on the ordinary share.
capital amounting to-£400,000 (2022: £400,000) which was paid to The Scott Trust-Limited on 21 March 2023.

Corporate governance

The Group's report on corporate governance can be found on the Guardian Media Group website:
www.theguardian. com/gmg within the annual financial reports section. During the prior year, STL completed a
corporate govetnance réview, ‘with-a View to clarifying the roles of the STL and GMG-boards. Following this-
review, two then:current STL Board membets, Emily Bell. and Mary Ann Sieghart, moved from the STL board to
be appointed to the GMG board.

Section 172 of the Companies Act
Reporting in accordance with Section 172 of the Companies Act is presented in the Strategic Report.

Going concern
The financial. position of the Group, its.cash flows, liquidity and risks position are. described in the strateglcf
report. .

In addition; note 4 to the financial statements inchides the Group’s objectives, po]icies and -processes for
managmg its capxtal its financial risk management objectives; detiils of its financial instruments and hedging
activities; and its exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow risk.

GMG is suppotted by an endowment fund which generates:returns to secure the long term future of the Guardian,
The scale of the fund, and the diversified nature of assets therein, gives the Directors a high expectation that the
Group has adéquate-tesources to continue in- operational existence for the next year arid the foreseeable future.

As noted, trust in our brand and reputation is also critical to ongoing performance. To mitigate this risk, the -
‘Group adheres to comprehensive editorial and commercial legal policies, and manages its:reputation proactively
throughout the business..

Given the above; the consolidated financial statements are prépared on a going concern basis.

Directors’ confirmations _ _
In the case of each director in office at the date the Directors’ Report is approved:

« so far, as the director-is aware, there is no relevant audit mformatlon of which the company’s auditors are
unaware; and

» they have taken all the steps that they oughit to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of
-any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware of that.information.

Events after the reporting yéar
On 16 May 2023 a dividend of -£345.0 m was paid-to STL by the Group, this, is in relation to a restructuring of
endoiwment fund assets by STL.

Future developments

in addition to future deve]opments that have been discissed in the strategic-report, following the above. noted
corporate governarice review, GMG will continue to transfer its endowment fund investments to' STEL. This
process is expected to continue over a number of financial years.
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Guardian Media Group plc
Directors' Report

Directors' liabilitiés ' _

As permitted by the Articles of Association, the directors have the benefit of an indemnity which is a'qualifying -
third party indemnity provision as defined by Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006. The indemnity was in force
throughout the last financial year and is currently in force. The Group also purchased and maintained throughout
the financial year directors' and officers’ liability insurance in respect of itself and its directors.

Approved by the Board on'3 July 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

Charles Gurassa
Chair

Guardian Media Group plc
Reglstered in England and Wales N0.00094531

3
>
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Guardian Media Group plé
Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for. preparing the Annual Report and. the finaricial statements in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations. _
Coriipany. law Tequires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law. the
directors ‘have prepared the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally -Accepted

Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounhng Standards, comprising FRS 101 'Reduced stclosure'
Framework',.and applicable law), .

Under company law ‘the directors must not approve the: financial statements unless.they-are. satisfied that they
give.a true:and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the: company for that
period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are  regirired to:

« select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

« state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising: FRS 101, have been followed,
subject to-any material departures-disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

- makej udgements and accounting estimates thatare reasohable and prudént; and

+ prepare the financial statements on the.going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsﬂ)le for keeping:adequate accountmg records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any. time the financial position of the company
.and enable them to ensure that the financial statements. comply with’ the Companies‘Act'2006.

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding ‘the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Guardian Media Group plc

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Guardian Media Group
ple

Opinion on the financial statements.

In our opinion:

« the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company’s-
‘affairs as at'2 April 2023 and of the Group's loss for the year then ended;

+ the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted internaticnal
-accounting standards; and

« ‘the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements of Guardian. Media ‘Group plc (“the. Parent company”) and its-
subsidiariés. (“the Group”) for the year ended 2 April 2023 which comprise Consolidited Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Company Statement of Financial Position,
Consolidated Staterent of Changes in Equity, Company Statemerit of chariges irt equity, Consclidated Statemient
Cash Flows, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has been:applied in their preparation is applicablé law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (United
Kingdom Generally-Accepted Accounting Practice) as applied in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act
2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) anid applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the fifancial statements séction of our repoit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group-and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to-our audit of the ﬁnanclal statements in the UK, includinig the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we. have
fulfilled our-other ethical responsibihtles in accordance with these requirements..

Congclusions relating to going concern.
In audmng the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the. going concern bas:s of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is'appropriate.

Based on thé work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, mdmdually or collectively, may cast ‘significant. doubt on the Group's and Parent Company's
ability to continue as a going concern for a period of af least twelve months from. when the financial statements
are authorised for isstie.

Our responsiblhtla and the responsibilities of the Directors ‘with respect to going concern are described in the.
relevant sections of this report,
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Guardian Media Group plc¢

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Guardian Media Group
plc

‘Otherinformation

The. Directors are responsible: for the. other information: The. other information comprises. the-information
included in the Annual Report, other than the-financial statements and our auditor’s report-theréon. Our opinion
on-the financial statements does not. cover the other information and, except to the extént otherwise explicitly
stated in.our report; we do.not express any form of assurance coriclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read thé other information.and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the finaricial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course. of the audit or
Gtherwise appears to be matenally misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. .If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, weare peqmrgd to report that fact.

We have notliing to report in this regard.

Other Companies Act 2006'reporting
‘In our opinion, based on the ivork undertaken in the ¢course of the audit:

o the information given in the Strategic Report and the Ditectors' Report for the financial year for Whl(‘.l'l the
financial statements‘are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

« the Strategic Report and the Directors” Report have been prepared in accordance with. applicable legal
requirements.

In the light of the knowledge-and understanding of the Group and Parent Comipany and its environment obtained

in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Diréctors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to-which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

s -adequate accounting records have.not been'ke'pt by the Perent Company, or returns-adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches notvisited by us; or

» the Parent Company financial statements are.notin agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
. ceitain disclosures of Directors* remuneration specified by law-are not:made; or
i we have not received all the information-and explanations we require for ouraudit.
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Guardian Media Group plc

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Guardlan Media Group
ple

Responsxbllmes of the-Directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the Diréctors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they:give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to-enable the preparation of financial statements. that are
free from material misstaternent, whether dile to fraud or error.

In preparing the. financial statements; the Directors .are responsible for assessing the Groups and the Parent
Company’s ability to. continue as:a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
lising the going concern basis of accounting unl&ss the Directors either irtend to liquidate the Group -or.the
Parent Company or to cease operations, or liave no realistic alternative butto do so.

-Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to-obtain reasorniable assurance about whether thefinancial statements as a whole are free from
‘material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is:a high level of assurance; but is not a guarantee that an audit-conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material miisstatement when. it exists. Misstateménts cari-arise from fiaud or
érror and are considered material if, individually or ‘in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected ‘to
influence the economic decisions of users.taken on the basis.of these financial statements.

Extent to which the audlt was capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances. of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
iin line. with -our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect materidl misstatements in respect of 1rregularmes,
including fraud. The extent to-which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below:

+ We-dentify and assess the risks of material misstateinent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
‘error, and then design and perform audit  procedures. responsive. to those risks, mcludmg obtaining audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for.our'opinion.

« We have identified and assessed the potential risks related ‘to’ u'regulanues, mcludmg fraud; by considering
the follomng
«-enquiries of management regarding : the comipliance with laws'and regulatlons, the detection'and response
to the risk of fraud and any knowledge of actual, suspected. or alleged fraud; and the controls in place to
mitigate risks related to fraud ot-non-compliance with.laws and regulations; and
+'obtaining an understandmg of thelegal and regulatory framework in which'the‘company operatés. Thie key:
laws considered are international accounting standards in conformity-with the Companies Act 2006.

« We have résponded to risks identified by performmg procedures including the following:
-« enquiry of in-house management concerning.actual and potéential litigation and claims;.
» performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships which may indicate
risksof misstatement due to fraud; and
« reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.

+ Our audit planning identified. fraud risk of inappropriate or incorrect recognition of revenye (revenue
recognition agsessed. for each revenue. stream). We reviewed the revenue recognition process per stream.and
identified potential gaps in the process to identify what could .go wrong and how: it could result in ‘incorrect
‘revenile recognition. We obtained and: understanding of the processes :and conirols that the Group has
established to address risks identified, or that otherwise prevent, deter -afid .detect fraud; and how’
management monitors that processes and.controls

» We have also considered the risk of fraud through management override of controls by:
« testing on a sample basis the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; and
+.assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of potential bias.

Page:15
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Independent Audltor s Report to the members of Guardian Media Group
-ple

Our audlt procedures weré designed to respond to risks. of material mlsstatement in the financial statements,
recognising that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to ‘fraud is highér than the risk of not.
detecting one resulting from error, @s ‘fraud may involve deliberate concealment ‘by,. for example, forgery,
misrepresentations or through collusion. There are inherent limitations in the.audit procedures performed and
the further removed non-compliance with laws. and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in:
the financial statements, the less likely we are to become aware of it.

A furtherdescnptwn of our respansibilities is available'on the Financial Reportmg Council’s website at:

* https://wvnv.frc.org. uk[auglxggrsresgggglbﬂmes This description forms part of our.auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made-solely to the Parent Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the:Companies Act 2006. Our-audit work has been undertaken so that we might state. to the Parent Company’s.
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no:othei purpose: To the
fullest -extent permitted by law; we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Parent
Company and the Parent.Company’s. members as a body, for our audit work, for-this report, or for the opinions
we have fornied.

DocuSigned by: . i

Poul, Eleringon

E10CC9CF40A94CC... .
Paul Etherington BSc.FCA:CF (Senior Stdtutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutoty Auditor
‘London

-

3 July 2023

BDO'LLP is a limited lability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number 0C305127).
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Guardian Media Group plc.

' Consolidated Income Statement for the year ended 2 April 2023

2023 2022
Note. £m £m
Revenue - 5 264.4 255.8
Raw materials and corisumables used. 7 (7D (13.0)
Staff costs. i1 (152.6) (131.0)
. Depreciation and amortisation expense 7. (9.7) (10.0)
Othier expenses (107.1)- (91.1)
Operating (loss)/profit’ (22.1) 10.7
Finance income 7.6 2.0
Finarice costs - (2:2) (3:5)
‘Net finance:income/(cost) ] 8 ' 5.4 (1.5)
Other gains and (losses) 9 (308 1335
(Loss)/profit before tax. (47:5). 142.7
Income tax credit/(experise) ‘ 12 .31.8. (22.4)
(Loss)/profit for the period (57 : 120.3

The above results were derived from continuing operations:

‘The notes-on pages 23 t 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Guardian Media Group plc:

~

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 2

April 2023
. ,
) 2023 2022
Note Em £m
(Loss)/profit for-the period 15.7) 120.3
Othier comprehensive income/(expense):
Items that will not be peclassiﬁed subsequently to profit
orloss.
Actuarial gain.on defined benefit pension schemes before tax 28 4.2 3.2
Incorie tax effect ' 13 (1.1) (0.6)
. 34 2.6
Items thatmay be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss
Foreign currency. translation gains. ' 0.2 0.6
Total comprehensive (expense)/income: for the period (12.4) 1'23‘-5

The niotes on pages 23 to 63 form an'integral part of these financial statements.
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Guardian Media Group plc

(Registration number: 00094531)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 2 April 2023

2023 2022
Note £m £m
Assets A ‘
Non-current assets.
Property, plantand eqiiipment: 13 3.9 4.2
Intangible assets : 14 2.0 2.7
Right-of-use.assets : 15 51.5 56.8.
Investments in joint ventures - 16 - -
Investments held at fairvalue through profit or loss 17 745.6 1,156.1
Unlisted shares 17 0.2 0.2
Deferred tax assets . ‘ 12 13.0, 14.7
Retirement benefit assets 28 2.4 -
\ 818.6 . 1,2347
Current assets’
Inventories ’ . 18 0.9 0.8
Trade and other receivables 19 517.5 69.9.
Income tax-asset 0.7 1.3
Cash and cash-equivalents 20 47.7 54.1
Investments held at fair valite through profit or loss 17 - ' 75.9
Other financial assets 17 . 1.7 ” :
568.5 ' 202.0
Liabhilities .
'Cuﬁ'ent' labilities .
Trade and otlier payables 21 52.6 44.1
Other current financial liabilities 17 - 21
Provisions . : 22 6.1 ’ 6.4
Current portion of long term lease liabilities o 23 8.4 8.3
67.1 60.9
. Net currentassets 5014 . 141.1
Total assets less current liabilities 1,320.0 . 1,375.8
Non-current liabilities )
Retirement benefit obligations : 28 ’ - 1.7
Provisions ) 22 5.1 5.0
Deferred tax liabilities ' 12 16.0 . 52.3
Long term lease liabilities ' 23 50.5 55.6.
: ’ 71.6 . 114.6
Net assets 1,248:4 1,261:2

The notes-on pages 23 to 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Guardian Media Group plc

(Registration number: 00094531) , ‘
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 2 April 2023

2023 - 2022
Note £m £m

Equity

Share capital 24 0.9 0.9
Revaluation reserve ’ . ‘ 0.7 0.7
Other reserves: 0.1 041
Retained earnings 1,246.7 1,259.5
Equity attributable to owners of the company ' 1,248.4. 1,261.2 .

These financial statements were approved by the'Board on'3 July 2023 and signed on itsbehalf by: ‘

* :Charles Gurassa .
Chair )

The notes oh.pages 23 to 63 form,an‘integi'al part of these fihancial statements.
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Guardian Media Grouip plc

Consolidated Statement-of Changes in Equity for the year ended 2 April

2023

At 4 April 2022
Loss:for-the period

Other comprehensive.

income =«
Total comprehensive

income
Dividends

At 2 April 2023

At 29 March 2021
Profit for the period
Other comprehensive
income

Total comprehensive
income

. Dividends

‘At 3 April 2022

Share Revaluation Other Retained
capital reserve reserves earnings Total equity
£m £m - £m £m £m
0.9 0.7 [s% I 1,259.5' 1,261.2
- - (15:7) (5.7
- - - 33 33
- - - (2.4) (12:4)
. - - (0:4) (0:4)
0.9 0.7 0.1 -1,246.7 1,248.4
Share Revaluation Other Retained ‘
capital reséerve reserves earnings Total equity
£m £m £m £m £m
0.9 0.7 o1 1;136.4 1,138.1
- - - 120.3 120.3
- - - 3.2 -3.2
- - - 123.5 123.5
. - - {0.4) (0.9
0.9 0.7 0.1 1,250.5 1,261.2

The notes on-pages 23 to 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Guardian Media Group plc

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 2 April 2023

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash frém/(used in) operations

Income taxes paid

Net:cash from/(used in) operating activities
Cash flows from itivesting.activities
Purchase of intangible assets

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purcliase of investments held at FVTPL

Sale of investments. held at FVTPL

Interest received

‘Dividends:and other income received from unlisted investments
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Lease payments

‘Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash-and cash equivalents at 4 April
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held

Cash-and cash equivalents at-2 April

The notes on‘pages 23 to 63 form-an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note

26

13

23

20

'

2023 2022
£m £m.

(14.4) 15.0

- (1.0)

(14.4) 14.0
- (2.3)

(2.:5) 37
(205.4) (133:3)
222.4 133:3

0.9 -

0.4 0.4
‘15.8 (5.6)
(8.6) (8a)

(7.2) 0.3

54.1 53.7

0.8 0.1

47.7 54.1




Guardian Media Group ple

Notes to the Financial Statements for the yeéar ended 2 April 2023

1 General information

The company is an unlisted public company limited by share capital, incorporated and domiciled in England and.
Wales,

The address of its registered office i is:

PO Box 68164

Kings Place

90 York Way

London

N1P 24P

These financial statements were approved by the Board on '3 July 2023.

2  Accounting policies

Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated:

Basis of preparation

The consolidated fifiaricial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Repornng’
Standards (IFRS) and IFRS Interpretations Committee. (fornierly IFRIC) interpretations as adopted for use in the
United Kingdom and with those parts of the Companies.Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS.
The consolidated financial stateinients-have been prepared under the ‘historical cost'basis, except for certain assets
and liabilities (mcludmg derivative:instruments) and defined benefit pension p]a ns.

The preparation of financial statements in conformlty with TFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
eéstimates. It also requires management - to- exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's. -
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexxty, or areas where assumptions.
and estimates are significant tothe:consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

Changesin-accounting policy

New standards; amendments and interpretations not yet effective

At the date. of -authorisation of the: financial statements, there are no méw standards, amendmients and
interpretations issued by the IASB but not yet applicable that will have a significant unpact on the consolidated
fihancial statements. .

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements corisolidate the financial statements -of the Company and 1ts subsidiary
undertakings and are made up to theé Sunday closest to 31 March each year. Consequently, the financial
statements forthe current year cover the 52 weeks ended 2 April 2023 and for the comparative year cover the 53
weeks endéd 2 April 2022. . o
" Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. Control is achieved where the company has the
povwer to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to.obtain benefits from its:activities.

Inter-company transactions, balances. and unrealised gains -on transactions between the company - -and its’
subsidiaries, which are related parties, are eliminated i full.

Intra-group losses are. also eliminated but may indicate. an- impairment -that. reqmres recognition in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Guardian Media Group ple
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 2 April 2023

Revenue recogmhon

Revenue is recognised in the accounting period when contro] of the sold product has been transferred, at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for fulfilling its
performance obligatioris to customers.

The principles in IFRS are applied to revenue:recognition criteria using the following 5.step model:

1. Identify the contracts with the customer.

2. Identify the performance obhgations inthe contract.

3. Determine the transaction pnce

4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations.in thecontract:
5. Recognise revenue when or as the entity sitisfies its performarnce obligations.

The application of the principles results in the following;
Reader revenues.
Revenue from contributions is recogn iseéd as revenite upon Areéeipt of funds.

Membership and subscription revenue is recognised on a straight-line basis over. the life: of the subscription.
Revenue associated with voucher schemes-is deferred based on estimated redemiption rates.and recognised as the
vouchers are used or expire.

Subscnptlon revenue from the prowswn of content via dlgltal platforms is recognised gross of platform provider
commission wheri the ‘Group retainis decisionis over pricing and marketing strategy and is' recognised net of
platform provider commission when the Group does not retain these.

Newsstand (clrculatlon) revenue (net of returns) is recognised on publication in fevenue. in the consohdated
" income statement and in-trade receivables on the.consolidated balance sheet.

Aduvertising

‘Print advertising revenue is recognised on publication. Online advertising is técognised ‘as page impressions are
served or evenly over the period, depending on the terms of the contract. Income from advance billings is
deferred and released to revenue when conditions for its recognition have been fulfilled.

Other revenue
Marketing services fevénue is recognised as obligations are'met or-upon completion of the contract..

Philanthropic revenue isrecognised as per IAS 20-on-a gross basis as it‘is considered this reflects the nature of the
transactions. Reveniie is deferred and is recognised ‘in line with when costs have been incurred for. a nil
contribution.

Royalty revenue is recognised once right of use-of the Group's content has been grarited to customers.

‘Going concern

GMG is supported by an.endowment fund which’ generates returns to secure the long térin future of the Guardian.
The scale of the fund, and the diversified nature of assets therein, gives the Directors a high expectation that'the
Group has adequate resouices to continue iri operational existence for the next year-and the foreseeable future (31
March 2026).

As noted, trust in oui-brand and reputation is also critical to ongoing performance: To mmgate this risk, the
Group. adheres to comprehensive editorial and commercial legal policies, and manages its reputation proactively
thiroughout the business.

N -

Given the above, the consolidated financial statements are prepared on 4 going concern basis.
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Guardian Media Group plc
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 2 April 2023

Joint-ventures

The Group has applled IFRS 11 to all Jomt arranigements. Under IFRS 11:investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations orjoint ventures. depending on the contractual rights and obllgatlons of each -
investor. The Group has asséssed the nature of:its joint arrangements and defermined them to be joint ventures:

A company is. tréated as a joint venture when the Group holds an-interest on a long-term basis and jointly
controls the company with one ot more parties.

Investments. in joint Ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accountmg and are mmally
recognised at cost. The Group’s. share of post’ acquxsmon profits-or losses is included in the consolidated income
statement. When the Group’s shate-of losses in.a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture,
including any unsecured receivables, the ‘Group does not recognise further losses; unless it has: incurred
obligations of made paymients on behalf of the. undertakmgs concerned.

Finance income and costs.
Income from bank and short-term deposits is mcluded in the financial staterients when receivable usmg the
effective interést method.

Dividends receivable are.recognised in-the financial statements when the shareholder's right to receive payment is
established. :

Foreign currency transactions and balances
The: consolidated financial -stitements are presented in Sterling, whlch is the functional and presentanonal
currency of GMG.

The results and financial position of all Group éntities (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a funétional curréncy.other than Sterling are translated into Sterling as folloivs:

- assets‘and liabilities deénominated in foreign. currency are translated at the rate of éxchange ruling at the year
.end;.and
- income and expense items are translated at the average rate of éxciange for the ﬁnancla] year.

Monetary-assets and liabilities expressed in foreign euirencies ‘are- translated into Sterling at market forward
exchange rdtes at the balance shieet date: Transactions in foreign currency are converted to Sterling at the rate
ruling at the date of the transaction at contractual rates.

Tax

The-tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recogmsed in:the consolidated income
statement, -except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehenswe income or directly in
equity. In this case, the taxis-also recognised in other comprehenswe income or directly in: equity, Téspéctively:

The current incomé tax charge is caleulated on the. basis of tax rates and laws that have been substantively
enacted by. the. reporting date in the countries where the group opératés.and generates taxable i income.
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‘Guardian Media Group plc
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 2 April 2023

Deferred income, tax is recognised, using the Ixablhty method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred
‘income tax is determined -using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substanhvely enacted by the
balance shéet date and are expected to: apply when the related deferred income-tax dsset is realised or the’
deferred. income tax liability is settled. Deferred tax liabilities are not recogmsed if-they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwﬂl deferred- income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than-a business combination that at the. t1me of the transaction affects
neither accountmg nor taxable profit orloss.

Deferred income: tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difféerences can be utilised.

Deferred income ‘tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and assocites,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the:Group-and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable: future.

Deferred income tax.assets and liabilities are offset when there is-a legally enforceab'le_ right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax-assets and liabilities reldte to-income-taxes
Tevied by the samé taxation authority on either the sametaxable entity or differert taxable entities where there.is
an intention. to.settle the balances on a.net basis.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities: requxre management Judgement in determining the amounts to be recognised.
In particular; significant ]udgement is used when assessing tlie extent to which deferred tax assets should be
recognised with congideration given to the timing and leyvel of futuié taxable income.

Property, plantand equipment.

All property, plant and equlpment is-stated at cost less accumulated. deprecnatlon and any impairment losses. Cost
comprises. the purchase: -price of the asset and- dn'ectly attributable costs in bringing the asset-to the location and
condition riecessary for it to'be capible of operating in the manner intended by management:

Depreciation. of property, plant and equipment has been calciilated fo write.off original cost by equal instalments
ovér the estimated useful life of the asset concérned. Depreciation is charged ‘to ‘the consolidated income
statement on assets from the time: they become operational.

The.assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
The -carrying value of property, plant and eéquipment is. reviewed for impairment if events or changes in
circunistances suggest that ‘their carxymg amount may not be. recoverable, When an impairment review .is
undertaken, the. recoverable amount is calculated as the net present value of. expected future cash-flows of the
relevant cash-generating unit, Impairment amounits are-charged to.the co nsolidated income statement:

Assets that are bemg constructed for-future use are classified as assets in thie course of construction until such
time as they are brought irto use by the Group: Assets in the course of construction includes all directly
attributable. -expenditure inctuding borrowmg costs. Upon completlon the assets. are transferred to the
appropriate category within property, plant and equipment..No depreciation is'charged on these iterns-until after
they have been transferred.

Depreciation

The principal annual rates used for depreciation are: '

Asset class Straight line depreciation rate
Plant and vehicles 6.7% - 50%

Fixtures, fittings-and equipment 10% < 33%
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 2 April 2023

Iritangible assets

Assets thatare subject to amortisation are réviewed for impairmert whenever events.or changes in circumstances
indicate-that the carrymg amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recogmsed for the amount by
which the assét’s carrying amount exceeds its récoverable amount. In calculating value in use, future cash.flows
are discounted and adjusted for the directors” assessment of. risk, The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Thie assessment of the récoverability of other intangible
assets and the determination of the, amortisation profile involve a mgmﬁmnt degree-of judgement based on
historical trends and management- estimation of future potential economic benefits. An incorrect-amortisation:
proﬁle could fesult in excéss amounts being carried forward as intangible assets that would otherwise have been
written off-to the consolidated income statement in an earlier period.

‘Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. Website and
other digital development costs are capitalised only if all of the following conditions are met: the asset created can
be identified; it is probable that the assét created will generate future economic benefits; and the. development
cost.can be measured rehab]y Such:assets are amortised.on.a sttalght-lme basis over their useful economic life up
to a maximuin of two years. Wheré no asset’can. be recogmsed development expenditure is charged to the
. consoliddted income statement in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation .
Amortisation is: provided on.intangible assets so as to write: off the‘cost, less. any estimated residual value, over.
their expected useful economiclife as follows:

£

‘Asset class- S . Amortisation method and rate
Internally generated digital assets. straight line over 2 years.
‘Cash.and cash-equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in'hand, deposnts held on call with banks, other short-term highly liquid.
investments with original maturities of thrée months or léss, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown net
of cash and cash .equivalerits where the Group has the right of net settlement. Short-term funds that are managed
as part of the investment fund and are-used solely in the acquisition and redemption of investments are classified
as non-current investments held at fair value through profit or loss as management currently has no intention of
using them for funding the Group's operations in the next financial year.

Trade receivables

Trade recejvables are stated at fdir. value upon recognition and then amortised.cost after provision. for.bad and
doubtful debts. The Group applies the IFRS-g simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses
alifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and is consideréd immaterial.

Trade payables
Trade and othei payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequent]y measured at amortised cost.

Borrowmgs

All borrowings-are initially recorded at:the amount.of proceeds received, net of transaction costs. Borrowings: are
subsequently carried at amortised cost, with the difference between thie proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the
amount-due on redemption being recognised as a charge to the income statement over the period of thie relevant
borrowing.

Interest expense is fecognised ori the basis of the effective interest method and is included in finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities-unless the company has an-unconditional right to' defe‘r-settlement;
of the lability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
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Fi'nancial instruments

Initial recognition

Financial assets and financial lidbilities coinprise.all assets and liabilities reflécted in the statement of financial
position, although excluding property, plant and equipmient, investmerit properties, intangible assets, deferred
tax.assets, prepaymerits, deferred tax liabilities and employee benefits plan.

, The Group recognises financial assets and- ﬁnanc1a1 liabilities in the statement of financial position when, dand
‘only when, the Group becames party to the conttactual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets. are mma[ly recognised at fair value. Financial liabilities are initially recognised .at fair value,
representing the proceeds received net of preiniums, discounts-and transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the financial liability.

All regular purchases and sales of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as fair value through profit or.
loss (“FVTPL”) are recognised on the trade date.

Subsequent.to initial measurement, financial-assets and financial liabjlities are measured at either amortised cost
or fair value. ' .

The endowment fund is accounted for based on information received to 31 March, adJustments are made for-
‘material transactions that have.occurred between this date and the Group's year end..

Classification and measurement
Financial instruments are classified at.inception info one of the following cdtegories, which then determine the -
subsequent measurement methodology -

Financial assets are classified into one of the following three categories:-

- financial assets at amortised cost;

- financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); or
- financial assets at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified into one-of the following two categories:
- financial liabilities at amortised cost; or
- financial liabilities at FVTPL,

The classification and the basis for measurement aie subject to ‘the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets:and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the ﬁnancnal assets, as detailed below:-

Financial assets at.amortised cost. 3
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both- of the following conditions and is not designated
as FVTPL: )

: the assets are-held within a business modél-whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect coritractual ¢ash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financia] assets give rise on specified dates-to cash flows that aresolely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Ifeither of the-above two-criteria is not met, the financial assets.are classified and measured at FVTPL,
If a financial asset meets the amortised cost criteria, the Group may choose to designate the financial asset at

FVTPL. Such. an election is irrevocable and applicable only if the. FVTPL classification significantly reduces a
measurement orrecognition inconsistency:..
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Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCD)
A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI only if it meets ‘both of the following conditions and is not desxgnated as
FVTPL:

- the asset.is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and:selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an-equity investment. that.is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair'value in'OCI. This élection is made on-aninvestment-by-investment basis.

If an equity investment is designated as EVTOCI, all gains and losses, except for dividend income, are recognisé,d,
in other:comprehensive income and are not subsequently included in the statement of income;

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL)
Financial assets not otherwise classified above are classified and measured as FVIPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
All financial liabilities, other than those classifiéd 4s financial habxhtles at FVTPL, are'measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method.

Financial liabilities at fair vaiue through profit or loss

Financial liabilities not measured at amortised cost are.classified and measured at FVTPL. This classificition
‘includes defivative liabilities.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecogriises a financial asset when;.

- the contractual rights to the cash flows from thefinancial asset expire;

-'it transféts the right to receive the contractual cash flows in-a transaction in which substaritially all of the risks
.and rewards of ownership of the findncial asset are-transferred; or

- the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does riot
retain control of the financial asset.

On derecogmtlon ‘of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying-amount of the asset and the.sum of the
consideration received is recogmsed asa gain or loss in the income statement::

Financial liabilities
The Group derecognises, a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled, or expire,
Impairment of financial assets

Measuremert of Expected Credit Losses

The Group recognises loss allowances. for expected credit losses (ECL) on firiancial instruments that are riot
measured at FVTPL, namely:

- Financial assets that are debt instruments..
= Accounts and other receivables.
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Evidence that the financial asséet is credit-impaired include the following;

- Significant financial difficulties of the:borrower orissuer;;

- Abreach of contract such as default or;past due event;

- The restructuring of the loan or advance by the group onterms that the group would not consider othérwise;.

-~ It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankriiptcy or other financial reorgamsatlon,

-The dlsappearance of an active:market for the security because of financial difficulties; ot

- Thete is otlier observable data relatmg to a group of assets such as adverse chang&s in the payment status of
borrowers orissuers in the group, or economniic conditions that correlate with defaults in the; ‘group.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simiplified approach, which requires expected lifetime losses to be -
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables,

Derivative financial instruments :

Derivative financial instruments. are' contracts, the. value -of which is derived from one or more underlying
financial instruments or indices, and include futures, forwards, swaps and options in- the interest Tate, foreign
.exchange, equity and credit markets.

Derivatjve financial instruments are recognised in the statement ‘of financial position at fair value. The fair value
of the forward currency contracts has been determined based on market forward exchange rates at the balance
sheet date.

‘In statement.of financial position, derivative financial instruments with ‘positive fair values (unrealised gains) are
included as assets-and derivative financial instruments with negitive fair.values- (unrealised losses) are included
as lidbilities,

The changes in the fair values-of derivative financial instruments entered into for trading purposes are included
in other gains and losses through the profit or loss.
/
“Whilst the Group's derivative- financial instrunients are used.for hedgmg purposes, the Group does not apply’
hedge accounting per IERS 9.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position wheri there-is a legally enforceable right to offset the. ‘recognised amounts. and there.is an intention to.
settle.on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultarieously.
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Fair value estimation

With respect to the investments held at fajr value through profit or loss, also referred’ to as the endowntent fund,
the Group discloses fair value measurements by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

- Level 1- quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

- Level 2 - inputs other than quoted ‘prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either diréctly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices); and

- Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable,
inputs).

A market is regarded as ‘active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from. an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service; or regulatory agency and those prices: represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an-arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by,
the Group.is the currerit bid price.

The fair valde of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market ‘(for- example, over-tlie-counter
derivatives) is -determined by usmg valuation techniques. These valuation techniques ‘maximise: the use of
observable. market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If :all
significant inputs requu'ed to fair value an instrumerit are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. If ong,
or more.of the significant inputs is not based on,observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific.valuation techniques used to value financial instrumerits include;

- Quoted markeét prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments;.

- The fair.value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance
sheet date, with the resulting value discournted back to present value; and

- Other techmniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value.for the remaining
financial instriments. .

For investments included in level 3, valuations are ‘provided by the fund manager based on broker quotes,
comparable. transactions and discounted cash flow analyses taking into account illiquidity’ in. the fund.
Management receive reports from. the investment fund manager on a monthly basis detailing the: ‘performance
arid valuation of the fund. These highlight any concern -over the performance of any of the investments and
valuations-are:- ad]usted accordmgly

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the financial statements when an obligation exists at.the balarce sheet. date, it is
probable that-an outflow of resources will be required to settle the. obligation and a reliable estimate .of that
obligation can be made, Whete'there are a number of simijldr obligations, the likelihood that an outflow- will be
required in'settlement is determined by conSIdermg the class of obligations-as.a whole: Provisions are discounted
where thie effect is material:
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Leases
The.Group leases various offices and rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 12.months to. 30 years
but may have extension options.

Contracts may contiin both lease arid non-lease. components: The Group allocates the .consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases. of
property. for which- the Group is a lessee and for which it has rhajor leases, it has:elected not to separate lease and
non-lease components and instead accounts for thesé as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on-an individual basis and contain a wide range of 'different terms arid conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants otherthan the:security interests in-the leased assets that are held
by the lessor. Leased assets may not-be uised as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date.at which the leased asset'is
available for use by.the Group. Assets and liabilities arising from-a lease are initially meéasured .on a present value
basis.

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

‘«Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives recewable,
+'Variable lease payments that are based on an index or-a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;,
+ Amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees,
«The exercise price of a purchase ophon if the Group is‘reasonably certain to exercise that opnon, and
« Payments of pena]nesfor terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the company exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of
‘the liability. The lease paymients are discounted using the interestrate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, which is generally the case for.leases in the Groip, thelessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use-asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, se¢urity and
conditions.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments hased on an index of rate, which
are not included. in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an
index or rate take-effect, the lease liability is. reassessed .and ‘adjusted against the. right-of-use asset. Lease.
payments are allocated between: principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease périod so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each.
period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at-cost comprising the following:

-« The amount of the initial measurement of lease Jiability;
"« Anylease payments made at or before the commencement date less any‘lease incentives received;
« Anyinitial direct costs; and
« Restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets-are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the léase term on a
Straight-line- basis. If the Group is reasonably certdin to exercise a purchase option,. the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the-underlying assét’s useful life. While the Group revalues its land .and buildings that are
presented within property, plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings held by
the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets ‘are.
recognised 6p-a straight-line basis as an.expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are 1€ases with a lease term of
12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small 1tems of office furniture.

Information about- critical accounting estimates. and judgements in the application of lease accounting is
disclosed in note 3. -
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Share capital ) -
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Dividends

Dividend distribution- to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial
statements at the point in which the dividends ate approved by the Company’s directors.

Defined contribution: pension obligation

All of the Group's:employees are eligible for membership.: of a defined contribution pension scheme and of those
eligible more than 97% are members of that scheme. The costs in respect of this scheme are charged to the
consolidated income statement as incurred.

Defined benefit pensiori obligation

The Group.contributes to one closed. defined benefit. pension scheme. The operating and financing costs of this
scheme are recognised in the consolidated income statement: Service costs and financing costs are recognised in
the periods in which they arise. Finance costs are-included in operating costs. Actuarial gains or losses'in respect
of this schémeé.are shown iri the consolidated staterient of compreliensive income.,

The asset/(hablhty) in respect: of defined benefit pension scheme is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation .at the balance sheet date léss the fair value. of the :schemes’ assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated -annually by mdependent actuaries using the projected unif credit method. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation is determined by the ‘estimated future cash otitflows using interest rates of corporate
bonds, which have terms. approxlmatmg theterms of the related obhgatlon

Impairment

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whethér theté is objective evidence that an asset or.group of assets
is impaired. This assessment involves con51dermg whether there has been a- 51gn1ﬁcant event or changes in
circumstances such as a-prolonged decline in the fair value of the asset below its cost, reviewing current financial
circumstances and future prospects..

_ 3 Critical accountingjudgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of-financial statements in conformlty with IFRS requxres the use-of certain critical estimates.and
Judgements It also requires management tg exercise its judgement in the ‘process. of applying the ‘Group’s
accounting policies. The Group continually. evaluates its estlmates, assumpnons and Judgements based on
available information and expetience. As the use of éstimatés is inherent in financial feporting, actual results.
could differ-from these estimates. The areas.involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity are described
‘below.

Investments held at fair value through profit orloss

The fair value-of finantial instruments tht are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuanon
techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select a variety of appropriate methods and.make assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end ‘of each reporting petiod. This is the Group's key
dccounting judgement.

Advertising rebates

The Group enters into agreements with advertising-agencies, which are subject to-a minimum spend and typically
include a commitment to deliver rebates to the agency based on ‘the level of agency .spend over the contract
penod These rebates can take the form of free advertising.space, cash payments or both. The rebate is calculated
using the forecast spend over the contract penod and the rebate entitlement set out in the trading agreement.

Calculating the required-amount therefore requires an estimate of future period spend in determining what tier of
spend the agencies may reach over the agreement.
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Recognition of deferred tax assets
The Group's tax expense for the year is the sum of the total current and deferred tax: charg&s The calculation of
the total tax expense necessarily involves a degree of estimation and judgement in respect of certain items.

.A deferred tax asset is recognised when it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred

tax asset to be recovered. Recognition, therefore, involves an estimate regardmg the prudent forecasting of fture
taxable gains and profits of the business.

‘Management believes that the estimates made to évaluaté the recoverability of deferred tax assets are reasonable

and that a recoverable amount of deferred tax assets is recognised. However, these estimates .include
uncertainties. that are:beyond the control of manigement. Therefore, the Group may need to adjust-deferred tax:
assets in the future if there is'a change in the -estimates rélated to the evaluation of recoverability due to
unforeseen chang_es in,assumptions and other factors. N

Lease term and discount rate.

There are a number of critical estimates and’ Judgements requxred to calculdte lease liabilities and correspondmg
right-of-use assets under IFRS 16. Where there is uncertainty regarding the length.of the lease, this is reviewed
and the most likely expected term is.used. The selection of the discount rate is. particularly cha]]engmg as the
company and the group of whichi itis part has no debt or serviceable equity.and therefore does not have weighted
average cost of capital figure readily available. When selecting an appropriate rate, the-company has considered
historical debt, recent capital pioj jects and. commercially* available rates. The final rate selected is therefore subject
to significant ]udgement that it is appropriate, sensitivity analysis has been: performed to ensure.that the final rate
used does not-unduly influence the.outcome with a commonly accepted range of rates.

Provisions , . N A
The Grouip's provisions principally relate to dilapidations of preniises.

Dilapidations are calculated baséd on the éxpected cost to téturn property to its original state and are built up
over-thelife of the lease.

4 Financial risk management and impairment of financial-assets

Financial risk factors _
The Group's activities may ‘expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk; credit risk and liquidity risk. The.
Group's.overall risk strategy seeks to-minimise:potential advérse-effects on the Group's performance. :

Market risk
Market risks arise in relation to foreign exchange, equity prices, investment allocation and interest rates.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has investments'in funds in non-sterlinig currenciés and in funds wlhich in tuin invest in overseas
assets and as a result is exposed to a degree of foreign-exchange risk.

The Group's policy is.to hedge 100% (2022: 100%) of the exposure to the US Dollar deiominated hedge funds
using US Dollar forward contracts.
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Sensitivity analysis

If the US Dollar had weakened/strengthened by 5% with all other variables held constant, the investments in
hedge funds would have been .approximately-£4.3 million lower or £3.9 million higher (2022 £6.3 million lower
or £5.7 iiiillion higher); however, as the Group's pélicy is to Ledge 100% (2022: 100%) of thie:USD denominated
‘exposure, the risk would be reduced to £nil (2022: £nil).

If the US Dollar had weakened/strengtliened by §% with all other variables held constant, the investments in US
Dollar denominated. managed.funds would have: been approximately £5.4 million lower or £5, .9.million higher
(2023: £i2.4 thillion lower or £11:2 million higher); ‘as. the Group's policy is to hedge 0% (2022 0%) of the
exposure, the risk would remam unchanged. '

Eqmty-prlce risk.

The'Group is exposed to equity securities-price risk because.of the investments held by the Group. To manage the-
Pprice risk arising, from the investments; the Group has.a diverse portfolio.

?

Sensitivity analysis

The table below details whether the gains or losses on the investments would. have been higher/lower if the actual
‘eturns liad been 5% higher/lower over the last 12 months, with all other variables held constant.

Investment category-
£m
Global equity : +/-3.3
‘Deflation hedging - ’ +/- 0.3
Emerging markets . +/-0.5
Inflation sensitive - +/-0.1
. Hedge funds , +/-0.5
Private equity . + ]-— 4'. 1
Interest rate risk

The Group has interest-bearing assets, primarily cash, which are at risk.of fluctuations in interest rates. These are
inonitored by the Gioup treasury function to ensure risks are’ minimised. Fluctuations in interest rates are:
unlikely to have a detrimental impact on the Group's operations and therefore the risk is not considered to be.
Significant,

Sensitivity analysis.

If average ‘annual interést rates had been 1% more during the year, interest receivable would have increased by
£nil (2022: £0.8 million).
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Creditrisk
Credit. risk is the-risk of ﬁnancxal loss to the Group if a customer or cotiriterparty to a financial instrument fails.to
meet its contractual obligations. '

Concenitation of credit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited due to-the Gmup s customer base being
large and unrelated. Due to this, management believes there is ho further credit risk provision required in excess
of the normal provision for expécted credit losses.

Credit risk arises from dep051ts with banks and financial institutions. Orily banks and financial institutions with a
‘Moody's Investors Service minimum rating of Aa3 are: accepted

Liquidity risk- B
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be.able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Group’s approach:to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will always have sufficient finds available to meet

its liabilitiés- whien due, under both normal and- difficult trading conditions; and without incurring unacceptable
- losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation. This is achieved through careful cash .management including

the producnon and.review.of regular cash flow forecasts and the optimisation of cash returns on funds held by the’

Group.

Capital risk management
The Gtoup's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group s ability to continue as a going concern.

Due to the nature of the Group's structure, the Company does not-iake changes to its equity structure. Debt is
managed in line with the Group's treasury policy. The Group maintains a centralised treasury: function which

operates in accordance with Board approved policies. Its principal objectives are to minimise financial risk whilst -

maximising returns on cash deposits:

Deposits of funds are made’ with banks and ﬁnax:lci_a] institutions approved by the Board and within set credit
limits, Variable rates:of return dre earned on these deposits.

Cash flow risk
‘The Group considers cash’ flow risk to-be low due to the availability -of liquid resources held in cash and the
endowment fund.

Fair:value estimations

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets.are based on.quoted market prices.at: the balance.

sheet date.

The- fair value of financial instruments that are.not traded in .an active market use fund ‘managers’ statements
'which are based on broker pricing or their own valuation techiniques.

5 Revenue
" The analysis: of the Group's. revenue for the period from continuing operations is-as follows:

2023 2022

£ £1n
Digital reader revenue: . 81.9 76.1
Print reader revenue : 68.7 715
Advertising 713 737
Other revenue - 425 34.5:
2644 *  255.8.
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TheGroup considers its business activih'e‘s fall into the following revenue categories:

Digital reader révenue - Digital reader revenue is from reader focused operations where the content is
served.online, iricluding mobile and apps. The key revenue streams within this category are subscriptions and.
contributions.

Print reader revenue - Print reader revenue is from reader focused operations ‘where the serisicing is via
print media; The key révenue streams within this category are newsstand and print subscriptions..

Advertising - Advertising encompasses all advertising operations, served both online, incliding mobile and’
apps and dlso through print media,

Other revenues - Other ievenues inchide all remaining revenues not iricluded. in the abouve. Revenue streams
include content licensing, jobs. listings, events and ‘philanthropic.

.

The analysis of the Group's revenue by geographical market is as follows:

2023 2022
£m £m

United Kingdom. i , 1712 175.9
USA & Canada 46,4 385
Australia & New Zealand 27.8 22:3

. Europe (excl. UK) 15.4. 15.6
Rest of the world . 3.6 3.5
264.4 ' 255.8

Performance obligations ‘
Performance obligations are specified within. our contracts with customers. Key revenue streams. and how they
areaccounted for based on‘assessment of performance.obligations are detailed in the'accounting polices.

The:Group has taken advantage of the practical «engpedients- in IFRS 15 not to disclose information on unsatisfied
petformance obligations: as the performance obligation is part of a cortract that has an original expected
duration of one:year or less (paragraph 121); not to recognise a 51gmﬁcant financing component: (paragmph :63);
and costs td dbtain.a contract (paragiaph 94).

Contract balances

Contract assets arise where goods or services are transferred to the customer beforé tlie customer ‘pays
consideration, or before payment is dué. Contract receivables. (loans and advances) represent our-unconditional
right to consideration for the goods or services suppliéd and performance obligations delivered. Coiitract
liabilities (deposxts from customers) relate to consideration received when we still have an obligation to deliver,
goods or services for that consideration.. .

Due to the nature of the Group 's contracts, whlch are generally short term or of a semce nature, the Group does

note 21.
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6 Non-statutory performance measures:

The Group uses two non-GAAP _key performarice indicators, being adjusted operating proﬁt/(loss) and adjusted
net operatmg cashﬂow

2023 2022
Note £m £m
Revenue A ' 5 264.4 255.8
Raw materials and consumables used 7 (17:1) (13.0)
-S,tgff costs ' 1 (152.6). (131.0)
Other expenses (107.1) (91.1)
Depreciatiop on right-of-use assets. . 15 (6.1 (6.0)
TInterest expense on leases : 8 (2.8) (3.0)
" Adjusted operating (loss)/profit © . (21.3) 1.7

Adjusted net operating profit/(loss) repreésents profit or loss itéms: that management consider to represent the
day-to-day performance of the business. As per below, this is calculated as statutory operating proﬁt/(loss)
adjusted for the follow items: exclusion of depréciation (on property, plant and equipmerit) and amortisation
-expense and inclusion of interest expense on leases..

2023 2022
Note " E£m ' £m
Operating profit/(loss) o (22.1) 10.7
Less: Depreciation-expense 7 2.8 2.2
Less: Amortisation expense 7 0.8 18
Add: Interest expense on leases 8 (2.8) (3.0)
Adjusted operating (loss)/profit (421.& 1.7

-Adjusted net operating cash.flow represents cash itéms that management consider to be key-in the operations of
the business. As.per below, thisis.calculated as statutory net cash flow adjusted for the following items: exclusion
of loans to the Group's -parent company STL for investing purposes. and transactions/development and cash
injections/withdrawals rélating to the Group-endowment fund investments.

2023 ' 2022
Note £m £in
' -Cash flow"

Neét increase in cash and cash equivalents (7:2) 03
Adjusted for: B
Increase in receivables due from related parties - operating 26 3.2 6.4
Purchase of investments held at FVTPL 2054 133.3
Sale of investments held at FVTPL : (222.4) (133.3)
Adjusted net operating cash flow . (21.0) 6.7
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7 Opeérating costs.

Operating profit/(loss) is arrived at after charging:

Raw materials and-consumables used
Depreciation expense

Amortisation expense

Depreciation on right-of-use-assets

8 Finance income arid costs

Finance income.

Interest income-on investments held at fair value through profit or loss
Interest income on bank deposits

Interest income on related party balances

Total finance ificome

Finance costs
Foreign exchange gains/(losses)
Interest expense on leases

Total finance.costs

Net finance income/(costs),

9 Other gains and losses

The analysis of the Group's othér gains and losses for the period is as follows:

Dividend income’
Net (loss)/gain on investments held at fair.value through profit orloss:
‘Loss from forward contracts'to hgdge foreign currency investments

10 Auditors' remuneration

A

Audit of these financial statements

Audit of the financial statemients of subsidiaries. of the company pursuant -

to legislation
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2023 2022
£m £m
17.1 13.0
2.8 2.2
0.8 1.8
6.1 6.0:
2023 2022
£m £m
0.5 2.0.
0.9 -
6.2 -
7.6 2.0
0.6 (0.5). .
(2.8) (3.0)
(2.2) (3.5)
5:4 (1.5)
2023 2022
£m £m
04 0.4
(23.0) 137.5
(8.2) (4.4)
( (30.8). 1335
2023 2022
£m £m
0.3 01
0.1 0.2
0.4 0.3
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11" Employees and directors

The aggregate payroll costs (including directors’ remuneration) were as follows:

2023 2022
£m. £m
Wages and salaries 127.3 107.9
Social security costs ' 13.4° A1a
Other pension costs. ) 10.4 9.2
Reduridancy costs . ' 15 . 2.8
152.6 131.0

The monthly average number of persons.employed by.the group (including directors) during the period, analysed
by category was as:follows:

2023 ) 2022
‘ No.. No..
Editorial and production - 1,014 924
Sales, distribution and support ) 612 565 .
1,626 1,489

Key management compensation, comprising directors and certain other senior-management of the Group:

2023 2022
£m . £m
Salaries and short-term employee benefits 5.1 5.8
Post-employment benefits 0.1 0.2
Termination payments, C 0.3 -
, e 5.5 6.0
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Directors' remuneration

Pension
contributions  Total ‘Total
Base salary  Benéfits & allowances 2023 2022
£ 000 £ 000 £ c}o‘o £000 £ oco
Executive directors
Anna Bateson. (“from 21
September 2022) 1 339 - 34 373 "
Katharine Viner 2 510 1 51 562 433
Keith Underwood. 3 517 1 45 563 539
Anniette Thomas (*to 1 July ‘
2021) 4 - - - - .970
Independent directors.and Chair
Charles Gurassa (*from 17 .
March 2022) 5 140 - - 140 6.
Neil Berkett (*to 17 March
2022) ' 6 - - - - ‘116
Emily Bell (*from 10 )
November 2021) ’ 35 - . - 35 12
Ete Davies (from 1 December
2022) 7 . 12 - : - 12 -
Jennifer Duvalier (*to 30 April.
-2023) 8 41 - - 41 .39
Anders Jensen (*to 31 August
2022) 9 14 - - 14 34
Yasmin Jetha 35 - - 35 34
Nigel Morris (*to 1 September
2022) 14 - Lol 14 34
Baroness Gail Rebuck 10 45 - - 45 44
‘Rene Rechtman 35 . - - a5 34
Mary Ann Sieghart (*from 10 h
November 2021) ' 35 - - 35 i2
Coram Williams 11 41 - - 41 39
Total: 1813 2. 130 1,945 2,346

* Date of appointment, resignation orother changes to directorships.

Executive directors” pension arrangements are pdid in two parts. Contributions-to tlie company: pension. are
restricted to the annual tax- approvahle limit which-will be £0 where the Lifetime Allowance has been reached or
£4,000 where contributions are made. Any value above.this limitis pald 45 cash in lieu of pension contributions
and subject-to PAYE. Benefits comprise solely healthcare and life and income protection. The latter is calculated
as a percentage of base salary. Where applicable, and noted below; allowances include the value of ‘accrued

holiday paid to Executlves wher leaving the Guardian.

Remuneration for’ mdependent directots was reviewed dunng the: year and increased from £34,000 to £36;,000

with effect from 1 November.2022. This was the first increase in fees since April 2007.

1 - Anna.commernced employment on 19 September 2022; The pay received for 2022/23 reflects her time in role
.during the year. Anna's base.salary for the year was £630,000 and the company pension contribution rate was

10% of salary.:
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2 - Katharine's base salary is independently reviewed by STL and has been ‘£509,850 throughout the. year,
following a.3% increase on'1. April 2022. Salary details in respect of the 2021/22 year are included in last yeais’
report. Katharine’s company pension contribution rate was 10%. of base salary. Katharine's base. sa]aly was
increased. by. 3.5% to £527,695 effective from 1-April 2023. This increase will be reflected in her total pay for
2023/24 in next yéar's Directors' Remunération Report. .

.3 - Keith’s underlying base salary for the period 1 April - 30 October 2022 was £443,415. This was increased on 1
November 2022 to £470,000 reflecting his additional responsibilities, There hayve been.no further changes to his
salary. For the period 1 July 2021 to 30 September 2022 Keith 'was the interim CEO and received an acting up
allowance of 20% which for thie current year equates to £44,342. Included in base salary is a payment in lieu of
unused holiday, granted .on an exceptional basis, due to Keith’s integral involvement and coordination of the
emergency.response to the-cyber attack in December 2022. Keith's company pension contribution rate was 9% of
base salary and acting up allowance (where applicable).

-4 - Annette Thomas left the Company on 3o June 3021, Payments relatmg to Annette’s departure areincluded in
last years’ report.

5 - Charles Gurassa was appointed as GMG Chair on17 March 2022. Hi$ fee for 2021/22 reflects his time in role
during the year.

6 .- Neil Berkett stepped down as GMG Chair on.17 March 2022.
.7 - Ete Davies joined as an independent Director on 1 Dece,mbe; 2022. His annualised.remuneration is ‘236,000.
.8 - Jennifer Duvalier’s remuneration included a fee for chairing the remuneration committee.

9 - Anders Jensen stepped down as an Independent Director on 31 August :2022. His annualised remuneration
was.£34,000.

10 - Baroness Gail Rebuck's remuneration included a fée for acting as Senior Independent Director.
11 - Coram:Williams' remuneration included an.additional fee for chairing the Audit.Committee.

.
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J
12 Income:tax

Tax charged in the income statement

2023 2022
) ) £m £m
Current taxation '
UK corporation tax 1.9 - 0.3
Foreign taxes o 1.0 0.3
Total current income tax 4 2.9 0.6
Deferred taxation } . )
‘Arising from origination and reversal of temporary differences (26.5) 15:2
Arising from changes ini tax rates-and laws (9:5) 5.9
Arising from previously unrecognised tax loss, téx-credit.or temporary
difference-of prior-periods; 13 0.7
Total deferred taxation (34.7) 21.8
Tax (credit)/expense in the income statement ‘ : (318) | 22.4
Tax on items charged/(credited) to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
2023 2022
. £m £m
Deferred: taxchargp actuarial gain. 11 0.6
i1 0.6

Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The‘t,ax on profit/(loss) before- tax for the period is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK

(2022 - lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK) of 19% (2022 - 19%), ~

The differences are reconciled below:

2023 2022
£m £m

(Loss)/profit before tax. (47.5) 1427
Tax on (loss)/profit calculated at stanidard rate of 19% (2022: 19%) (9.0) 271
Adjustmernits relating t6 current tix:

(Income not taxable)/expenses not-deductible 1.3 0.4
Foreign taxes payable 1.0 0.3
Impact of overseas tax rate differences’ . 0.1 0.2
Utilised tax]osses, in the year : Q.2).
Capital allowances in excess of depreciation (2.7 3.5)
Adjustment to tax charge on investments held at FVTPL : 12.2 {22.7)
Current tax charge for the year - 2.9 0.6
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2023 . 2022

£m £m
Adjustments relating to deferred taxation:
Adjustiment to tax charge on investments held at FVTPL (26.5) 27.0
Short term timing differences on accounting provisions. . - 04
Recognition of deferred tax asset - (17.1)
Remeasurement of deferred tax for.changes in tax rate (g.5) 1.1
-Adjustments in respect of prioryears 1.3, 07
Deferred tax (credit)/charge for the year- (34.7). 21.8
Total tax (credit)/charge (318). 22.4

Income not taxable/expenses not deductible

Certain types: of income such as dividerids are not taxable. Some: expenses by-their very nature are entitely
-appropriate charges for:inclusion in these financial statements but are not allowed as.a deduction against taxable
income when calcilating the: tax liability. Examples .of such expenditure are certain legal expenses and
depreciation charged on assets that do not qualify for ‘capital allowances.

Foreign taxes paid

The majority of the Group's activities are performed and taxed in the UK. However certain local taxes are
incurred by the Group's activities in overseas territories. Wlthholdmg taxes are also incurred on certain overseas
revenue streams, currently no double tax relief is available as theré is insufficient UK tax payable on the foreign
income:against which the foreign tax was.charged.

Utilised tax losses in the year

The Group has-utilised historic brought forward losses to offset profits and. gams recoghised. in' the income:
statemeit which has resulted ina reductlon in the corporate tax charge in the-prior year.

Capital allowances.in excess of depreciation

The accounting treatment of expenditure on fixed assets differs from the tax treatment. Foraccounting purposes
an annual rate of depreciatiori is applied to the cost of the-assets over their useful economic life. Tax relief is not'
available on ail the deprecxahon Instead, capital allowances are available to be claimed on certain fixed assets as.
a tax rellefprowded ifi law..

Adjustment to.tax charge on investments held at fair value through profit or loss (FVT PL)

The accounting treatment of investments held at FVTPL differs from the tax treatment. For tax purposes, the
Group is required by law to ignore the accounting transactions and ‘instead perfori a separate calculation of the:
taxable. profit or loss when the assets are. disposed of. The Group is also required. by law tg disregard for tax
purposes the accounting transactions’ associated with derivatives entered into relating to these assets. The
disregarded transactions are subsequently broughit into account for tax purposes when the underlying assets are
disposed of. The resulting timing differences result in-a deferred tax liability which represents the future net tax.
due on the dispgsal of the assets based on their valuation at the balance sheet date:

Short term timing differences-on accouritirig provisions . ‘
Short term timing differences arise on iteéms such as ceftain provisions becaise the tréatment of these items is
different for tax and accounting purposes, These timing differences result in a deferred tax asset or liability which
répresents the fiiture tax rélief or tax payable-available on the utilisation of the provisions.
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Recognition of deferred tax asset

The inherent future :gains in the investments held at fair value through profit and loss are greater than the
amount of carried forward losses, short term timing, differences and capital allowances that will be available by
law to offset these gains. A deferred tax liability has been recognised in relation to the amount of future gams and
a deferred tax asset in relation fo carned forward losses and capital allowances.

Factors that may affect future. tax charges

In the 2021 Budget the government announced the UK icorpordtion tax rate-will i increase to 25% with effect from1 ~
April 3023, The Group has- therefore remeasured. its UK deferred tax.assets.and liabilities at this higher rate of
tax.

Deferred taxation .
Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary timing differences under the liability method using the rate at
which tlie balances are expected to be.unwound.

The: movemenr on the deferred tax liability is as:shown below::

Balance Recognised Balance
asatg. ) inthe Foreign as at:2
April Prior year income exchange Recognised April
2022 adjustments .statemient movements: in OCI 2023
£m: £m £m £m T fm £m
Accelerated - A
capital
allowances on ’ .
fixed assets .19, 0.5 3.5 - = 164
Short term and
othertiming-
differences 3.1 (2.3) 0.4 L - (1.2) -
Investments held '
at FVTPL 4 83.7) 0.6 39.7 - - {(43.4)
Tax losses carried
forward.- UK 9.2 0.6 1.5 - - ‘11.3
Tax losses catried ' -
forward -
Overseas 14.7 (0.6) ' (2.1) 1.0 - 13.0
Total deférred ]
tax liability (37.6) (1.3) 36.0 1.0 (€% (3.0

£13.0m (2022 F14.7m) is included within the balance: sheet within non-current assets and f£16.om (2022:
£52.3m) is mcluded within non-current liabilities.
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Balance ‘Recognised Balance
asat 29 ] in the asat3
March Prior year income. Recognised April
2021 adjustments  statement in OCI 2022
£m £m. Em; £m £m
Accelerated capital allowances on
fixed assets 17.6 - 1.5 T 191
Short tesim and other timing
differences. 1.0 (0:1) 2.8 (0.6) 3.1
Investnients held at FVTPL (47.7) 18 (37.8) - (837
Tax losses carried forward - UK 1:‘1.,4 (2.4) 0.2 - 92
Tax losses. carried forward = : '
Overseas 2.5 - 12.2 - 14.7
Total deferred tax liability (15.2) (0.7) (21.1) (0.6) (37.6)

Deferred tax assets have ‘not been recognised where they felate to losses and tax reliéfs in.companies where their
future utilisation cannot be considered probable. The Group has losses carried -forward on which it is not
* recognising a deferred tax asset o of £97.8m (2022:.£97.8m).

v

Page 46



Guiu‘dian_ Media Group plc:

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 2 April 2023

13 Property, plant and equipment

Furniture,

fittings and Plant and '

equipment machinery Total

Em £m £m

Cost or valuation :
At.29 March 2021 i 26.3 13:6 39.9
Additions 0.5 3.2 37
Disposals (0.2) (4.2) (4.4)
At 3 April.2022 . 26.6 12.6 39.2
At April 2022 ’ ' 26.6 12.6 39.2
Additions- 0.3 2.2 2.5
Disposals - (0:2) (0.2)
At2 April 2023 26.9. 14.6 415
Depreciation '
At.29:March 2021° - 25:4 11.8 ‘37.2
Charge for period . 0.5 1.7 2.2
Eliminated on disposal . (0:2) (4.2). (4.4)
At 3 April 2622 25.7 9.3 35.0
AtqApril2022 257 9.3 35:0
Charge for the period 0.3 2.5 2.8
Eliminated on disposal ° - (0.2) 0.2)-
At2 Apri] 2023 26.0° 11,6 37:6
Carrying amount
At2Apiil2023 09 3.0 3i9
At3 April2022 ' 0.9 3.3 4.2
At20 March 2021 ‘ 0.9 1.8 . 2.7
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14 Intangible assets

“Cost’

At29 March.2021
.Additions
Disposals

At 3 April 2022
At 4 April 2022
Disposals

At 2 April 2023

Amortisation

At 29 March 2021
Amortisation-charge

Ariortisation eliminated on disposals
At 3 April 2022

At 4 April 2022

Amortisation charge

Amortisation eliminated on disposals
At 2 April 2023 .

Carrying amount

At 2 April- 2023

At 3 April 2022

At 29 March2021
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Internally
generated
‘digital assets
(softwaré)
£m

17.2

2.3
)
18.1

181
-(0.1)

18.0-‘

is.0
1.8
(1.4)
15.4
15.4.
0.7
(0:1)

16.0-
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15 Right of use assets-

Property
£m

Cost of valuation .
At 29 March 2021 _ . 73-4
Additions 0.1
Disposals i (0.1)
At 3 April 2022 ' . 73.4
At 4 April 2022 . 734
Additions. ' 0.8
Disposals . (0.2)
At 2 April 2023 ’ 74.9
Depreciation ' .
‘At 29 March 2021 ‘ 10.6:
Charge for period 6.0

I3 - . ——————————
At 3 April 2022 _ 16.6.
At 4 April 2022. ' 16.6.
Charge for the period : 61 .
Eliminated on disposal . (0.2)
At2 April 2023 ’ ' : 22.5
-Carrying amount ' .
At2 April 2023 ‘ s

At3 April 2022 56.8

16 Investments in joint ventures

Ozone Project Limited -

The Group owns 17.8% (2022:25%) of the share capital of Ozone: Project Lumted The reduced ownership is due
to the issuance of new shares to other shateholders. As the'Group has- retained joint control through the voting
structure, Ozone Project. Limited is sfill considered to be a joint venture.

Reconciliation of carrying value

2023 2022

. £m . £m
At 4 April 2022 ) - -
Share of 10ss for the period : - -
At:2 April 2023 o - -
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17 Other financial assets

2023 2022
£m £m
Norni current - other financial assets
Investments held at'fair value through. profit-or loss ' i 745.6 1,156.1
Unlisted shares 0.2 0.2
745.8 . 1,156.3
2023 2022
. £m £m
Current- other financial assets
Investments held at fair value through profit or loss. ' - 75.9
Other financial assets . 17 -
1.7 75-9
2023 2022
N £m £m
Global investment fiinds ( 737.0 ' 1,067.0
Non-current shoit term funds held for reinvestinent 8.6 89.1
Derivative financial instruments 17 (2.1)
Corporate and gpvemment'boqu - 757
Current short tern funds leld for reinvestmerit, - 0.2
Endownient fund S ' 747.3 1,220.9

During the year the Group's parént company initiated a testructure of its investment activities and the Group
transferred £434.9m of Endowment assets to The Scott Trust Endowment Lumted a sub51d1ary of The Scott
Trust Limited. This has resulted in.an increased balance due from ré¢lated parties as shown in niote 19. As part of
the process of this transfer, on 16 May 2023 a dividend of £345m was paid to The Scott Trust Limited by the
Group.

The Group has committed to future investments of £94.6 million- (2022: £143.0 million). The Group considers
that any -associated risk.-with meeting these commitments is low as they will be met from disposal of existing
funds.

The short-térm funds held for reinvestment broadly represent highly liquid investments in money market deposit
accounts and money market funds with-a maturity date of three months o less. Management has classified sorie
of these as non-current as ‘it currently has no intention of using them in the Group's operations in the next
‘financial-year.

1
The foubwing tablé presents: the Group's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value. at-the year end;
descriptions of each level areincluded note 2.
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Levela : Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m. £m £m
Asat 2 April 2023 ’ .
Financial assets - FVTPL 3714 - 3742 | 7456
Derivative financial instruments - 17 - 17
' ‘ 371:4 1.7 374.2 747.3
Level1l - Level 2 ‘Level 3 '-l‘otal
£m £m £m E£m
As at 3.April 2022 . )
Financial assets - FVTPL, . ) 582.6 74.6 574.8 1,232.0
Derivative financial instruments - (21) - (2.1)
582.6 72.5 574.8 . 1,229.9

The following table shows a summary of the changes in the fair value. of the Group's Level 3 financial assets -
FVTPL during the year:

Leveis
£m
At 4 April 2022 R , 574.8
Additions into Level 3 - 158.7
Disposals (335:0)
Fair val ue gains recognised in income statement ' { g , 3)

At 2 April 2023 : . 374:2

Sensitivity analysis for-Level 3 positions:

If the US Dollar had weakened/strengthened by 5% with:all other variables held constant, the investments in level

3 US Dollar-dériominated financial ‘assets would have beei approximately £10.8 million lower or £9.7- million,

higher.

The gains or losses on the investments would have been £4.0 million higher/lower if the actual returns had been
‘V ‘higher/lower over-the last 12 months, with all.other variablés held constant.

There have been-no significant transfers.between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.

The fair. value of fiind assets held in Level 1 is based on their current bid prices in an active market.

For investments ‘included in level 3, valuations are provided by the fund manager based on broker quotes,
comparable transactions, and discounted .cash flow analyses taking into ‘account 1lhqu1d1t) in the fund.
Management réceive reports froni the investment fund mianager on a monthly basis. detailing the performance

and valuation of the fund. These highlight any concern over the Jperformance of any of ‘the investments and
valuations are-adjusted accordingly.

) Page 51



‘Guardian Media Group plc
Notes: to the Financial Statements for the year ended 2 April 2023

Other financial assets are denominated in the following currencies:

2023 2022
£m £m
Sterliug 529.7 773:2
US Dollar ) 207.4 4141
Euros ' ~10.2 447
747.3 1,232.0
18 Inventories
2023 2022
' £m £m
Raw materials'and consumables. 0.9 0.8

The Group consumed £15.4umi11‘iqn (2022; £12.8 million) ofinventories during the year.

19 Trade-and other receivables
2023 2022

. i £m £m

Trade receivables 18.8 19.1
Loss allowance i (0.3) (0.3)
Net trade receivables. _ 18.5 18.8
Receivables from related parties 478.1 33.9
Accrued income 10.5 8.6
Prepayments 5.6 6.5
-Other receivabiles 4.8 2.1
Total current trade'and other receivables 517.5. 69.9

Contract assets included in the above balances will fully unwind in the cartent year.

The Group applies the IFRS g simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses: which. uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and the identified impairment loss was immatérial:

20 Cash and cash equivalents

2023 2022

£m £m
Cash-atbank, ' 8.8 ‘8.0
.Short-term deposits: 38.9 46.1
' 47.7 _54.1

Page 52



Guardian Media Group plc

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 2 April 2023

21 Trade and other payables’

Trade payables

Accrued expenses’

Deferred incoine

Amounts-due to related parties.
Social security and other taxes
Other payables

Contract liabilities included in:the above balarices will fully unwind in the current year.

22 Provisions.

—

At.4 April 2022
Increase (decrease) in existing provisions
Provisions used

Unused provision reversed

At 2 April 2023
Non-current liabilities

Current-liabilities

2023 2022
£m £m
6.7 6.8
15.8 14.2
23.9 '22.3
1.1 -
4.2 0.2
0.9 0.6 .
‘ 52.6 ' 44.1
Other
Building provisions Total
£m £m
5.3 1.4
2,5 2.6
(1-6)' (2"7)
(0.1) (0.1)
6. 1.2
- 5.1
6.1 6.1

The building provisions relate to éilap’idationsprovisions -expected to be utilised over the life.of the lease of eleven

years.

Other provisions primarily represent annual leave obligations, severance-and IT related costs.

Provisions are not discounted as any impact is not considered material.

23 ‘Leases

Breakdown of leases:

Current portion of long term lease liabilities
Long term lease liabilities
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Lease halulmes -maturity analysis
A maturity analysis of lease liabilities based on undlscounted gross cash flow is reported in the table below:

. 2023 2022
£m £m
Less than one year 84 8.2
2 years : 8.2 8.2
3years 7 8.0
4-years . . 7.7 7:6
5years . 6.9 7.6
6 years ' 6:9 6.9
7 yedrs ' . , : 7.0 6.9
8 years, 7.0 7.0
9 years. A 7.0 7:0
10 yéars- 5.2 7.0
Between 1010 15 years : . ‘ - 52
Total lease liabilities (undiscounted) 72.0 796
Total cash outflows related to leases. )
Tota) cash outflows related to leases are presented in the table bélow:
2023 . 2022
‘Payment - £m _ £m.
Right of use assets 8.6 8.1
24 Share capital
Allotted, called up-and fully paid shares A
2023 : ‘ 2022
No.m £m No.m £m
Ordinary Shares.of £1 each 0.9 0.9 . 0.9 . 0.9
25 Dividends paid
2023 2022
£m  £m
Dividend of £0:444 (2022: £0.444) per ordinary share . " 04 0.4

On 21 March 2023 the Board déclared-a dividend of 44.4p (2022:.44: 4p) per share on the ordinary.share-capital
amounting to £400, ooo (2022: £400,000) which was paid to The Scott Trust Limited on 21 March 2023: .
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26 Cash flows from operating activities

2023 2022
. Note £m £m

Cash flows from operating activities '
(Loss)/profit for the period before tax , : (47.5) 142.7
Adjustments for: )
Depreciation 13,15 89 8.2
Amortisation of other intangible assets 14 0.7 1.8
TFinance costs 8 2.2 3.5
Finance income 8 (7.6) (2.0).
Other gajns and losses 9 30.8 (133.5)
Pensions 28 0.1 0:1.
Increasé/(decrease) in provisions , 22 (0.2) (4.3)

' o ’ © (12.6) 16.5
Working capital adjustmenits: o ‘
Increase in inventories ’ 18 (aa) (0.9)
Increase in receivables due from related parties - operating 19 (3:2) (6:4)
Increase in trade:and other receivables 19 (3.3) (.6)
Increase in trade andother payables 21 4.8 6.9
Cash (used in)/from operations - (14.9) 15.0

- 27 Non adjusting events after the financial period

‘On 16' May 2023 a dividend of £345.0 m was paid to STL by the Group,. this is in:relation to.a restructuring of
endoivment fund assets by STL as discussed in note 17.
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28 Pension comniitments
' 2023 2022
. ‘ £m. £m
Pension costs, defined contribution scheme 10.4 0:2

Trafford Park Printers 1990 -Pension Scheme

Trafford Park Prin'te;rs-1990 Pension Scheme ("the Scheme"), is'a defined benefit scheme, which provides benefits
based on final pensionable pay. The Scheme was closed to new-éntrants on.1 April 1998 and-closed to future
accrual.on.31 December 2006.

The scheme provides pension benefits payable to members (and potennally their spouses/dependents) for life.
‘The level of benefits provided depends on the members’ Jength of service:and ‘their: salary in the years leading up
ta closure to futire accrual. Penisions in payment are.  generally increased in line with price mﬂatxon

TheAscheme is governed by a board of trustees, composed of representatives of the Company and scheme
participants; The board of trustees have control over the:operation of the scheme:-and its. funding and investment
strategies. Investment: decisions and agreement on contribution schedules are the joirit responsibility of the:
Group-and the trustees.

“The scheme assets are held in trusts and governed by local regilations.and practice.

"UK legislation requires the trustees of the Scherme to carry out an:actuarial valuation.at least évery three years-and

to ‘target full funding against-a basis that prudently reflects the scheme’s exposuré to risk. The most recent
actuarial valuation for the Scheme was.performed as at 31 March 2022 which resultéd in the Scheme having
assets sufficient to cover 94% of the liabilities accruéd in respect of members.

Followmg the valuation date there has been 51gmﬁcant volatlhty in respect of financial market experience. The
Company and the Trustees; having considered guidance. from the Pension Regulator, have agreed to make
-allowance for the Scheme's experience. since the valuation date for the puiposes of determining the appropriate
Recovery Plan and Schedule of Coritributions.

For the purpose of the 31 March 2022 valuation the Recovery Plan was calculated by reference to market
conditions at 28 February '2023 which resulied. in the Scheme having assets sufficient to. cover 105% of the
liabilities accrued in respect of members. As the updated results confirm a funding. surplus on the Teéchnical
Provisions basis, thére is ho reuiremént for a Recovery Plan.to be put in place and there:will be no contributions
-due to the:scheme. The next triennial valuation will be.carried out as at 31 March-2025.

During the.year, contx“ibinlion_s totalling £nil (2022: £nil) were paid to the Scheme.

The. valaation for the- Scheme has been updated to 2 April 2023 -for accounting purposes by a qualified
.independent actuary.
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‘Risks.
Assetvolatility

The scheme liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reférence to corporate bond yields; if scheme
assets inderperforim this yield (all else being equal), this will create a shortfall. The scheme holds a proportion of
equities, which .are expected to outperform corporate ‘bonds in the long-term but‘they expose the scheme to
volatility and: risk in the short-term.

As the scheme matures; the Group (and trustees) intend(s) to reduce the level of invéstment risk by investing
more in assets that better match the movement in the liabilities (for example gilts and bonds). However, the.
Group bélieves that due to. the long-term nature of the scheme liabilities and the strength of the sponsoring’
employer, a.controlled level of equity invéstment is-an appropriate element of the Group’s long-term strategy to
‘manage the scheme efficiently.

Changes'in gilts / corporate bond yields

A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase scheme: liabilities, although this will be partidlly offset by an
increase.in the value of the schemes assets held in corporate bonds.

Inflation risk

The majority of the pension. obhganons are linked to inflation (i:€. the associated increases on the pensions before:
and after retirement are generally linked to price lnﬂatlon) Higher inflation will lead to higher liabilitiés.
(although, some caps apply to the level of inflationary increases, which minimises the exposure to high inflation.
rates):

The schemes hold a proportion of the assets in index-linked gilts, whose value changes with movements in price.
inflation. ngher inflation will increase their value and offset some.of the liability exposure.

Life expectancy

The majority of the schéme obligations are to provide pension benefits for the life of the memiber (or the lifetime
of their spouse 7 dependants). Therefore, increases in life-expectancy will result in an increase in the scheme
liabilities.

Regulations

Actions:taken by the UK pensions regulator, or changes to European legislation, could result in stronger funding
standards, which could materially affect the scheme obligations and cash flow requirements from the Group.

The Gfoup, along'with the trustees of the scheme, manages the funding and investment strategy of the schemeto
minimise these risks:as much as possible.

'Regdnciliation'of scheme assets and liabilities.to assets-and liabilities recognised
The'amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are.asfollows:

2023 2022
” N £m. £m.
Fairvalue of scheme asséts . 321 411
Present value of scheme liabilities (29.7) (42.8)
Defined bériefit pension scheme surplus/(deficit) 2.4 .7
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Scheme assets
Chaniges in the fair value of schemme assets are asfollows:

Fair value.at start of period

Interest income

‘Return-on plan assets, excluding amounts iicluded-in interest
income/(expense)

Bengefits paid

"Fair value'at end of period

Analysis of assets .
The major categories of scheme assets are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Equity instruments
Debt.instruments
Insurance-annuity
Investment funds
Diversified credit

Equity instruments
Equity instruments can be further categorised as follows:

Quoted
Equiity instruments

Debtinstruments
Debt instruments can be further categorised as folloivs:’

Quoted

Gilts

Corporate bonds
‘Diversified credit
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2023 2022
£m £m
41.1 44.8
1.0 ‘0.8
8.5) (3.)
(1.5) (.4)
32.1 411
2023 2022’
£m. £m
- 0.2
4.7 14.8
13,9 -
71 9.5
6.4. 4:7
- 1.9
32.1 41.1
2023 2022
£m £m
AQQT 14.8
2023 2022
- £m £m
8.5 -
54 -
- 11.9
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Investment funds
Tnvestment funds.can be further categorised as follows:
2023 2022
£m £m
Quoted
LDI 6.4 4.7

The pension scheme has not.invested in'any of the company’s own financial instruments or in properties or other
assets used by thie company. ) ’

‘Scheme liabilities
Changesin the present value of scheme liabilities are as follows:

2023 2022
£m £m

Present valiie at start of period 42.8 49.6
Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from changes in‘demographic.

assumptions ‘ 0.1 {0.9)
Actuar‘ialﬂ'ga.ins arising from changes in financial assumptions (11.9) (5.4)
Actuarial gains arising from experience adjustments (6.:9) -
Interest cost 1.1 0.9
Bénefits paid (1.5) (.4)
Present value at end. of period 29.7 42.8

Principal actuarial assumptions

The significant actuarial assumptions- used to determine the present valug of thé defined benefit obligation at the
statément of financial position date are as follows:

2023 2022
L % %
Discount rate . 4.7 2.6
Futuré pension incredses 3.0 3.0
RPI Inflation rate; ‘3.5 3.6.
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Post retirement mortality assumptions’ '
2023 2022

Years Years
Current UK pensioners-at retirement age - male: 20.9 20.8
Current UK pensioners at retirement age --female ' 23.4 © 233
Future UK pensioners at retirement age - male . 22.1 22.0
Future UK pensioners at retirement age - female 24.8 24.8
Amounts recoghised in the income statement

’ 2023 2022
Em £m

Amounts recognised in operating profit
Recognised in arriving at operating profit ' - -
Amounts recognised iri finance income or costs
Interest expense on defined benefit-obligation @) (0.9)
Interest income on plan assets. ‘1.0 0.8
Recognised in other finance cost » (0.1) (0.1)
Total recognised in the income statement : {0.1) {0.1)
Amounts taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income

2023 2022

. £m £m

Actuarial (losses)/gains arising from changes i in demographlc
assumptions (o.1) 0.9
Actuarial gams arising from changes in financial assumptions 11.9. 5.4
Actuaridl gains arising from experience adjustments 0.9 -
Refurn on plan assets, excluding amounts mclnded in interest )
income/(expense) (8.5) (3.1)
Amounts recognised in the:Statement of Comprehénsive:Income: 4.2 3.2
Sensitivity analysis ¢

A sensitivity ‘analysis for the principal assumptions used to measure scheme liabilities is set-out below:

2023 2022
) £m £m
‘Discount rate.+0.5% (2022: +0.25%) ) (2.1) (i.9)
Inflation +0.5% (2022: +0.25%) 0.3 0.3
Increase of 1 year in.life expectancy 12 2.0
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The above sensntmty analysts is based on a change in an assumption whilst" holdmg all other assumphons ’
constant, In practice, this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptioris may:be linked: In practice,
¢hanges:in financial conditions could well lead to ¢hdnges in the value of the scherne's assets.

29 Reldted party transactions

Transactions between subsidiarjes. of Guardian: Media Group plc are not reqmred to be. disclosed as these
transactions are fully elimiriated on consolidation: In the course of normal operations, the Group Has traded on_
-an arm'’s lenigth basis with: Jomt venture, associate and other related partm The aggregated transactions are:.
/7

- 2023 2022
£m £m

Sdles - 2.1 ' 1_6
At year-end, balances outstanding in relation to these related parties amounted to £1.8m (2022: £0.7m).

The total transaction for tlie year with The Scott Trust Limited is £3.1m (2022: £7.,6'r\n). At year-end, the balance
receivable from The Scott Trust Limited is £36.0m (2022: £33.8m).

The total transaction for the year with The Scott Trust Endowment Limited is £441.2m (2022: Enil): At year end,
the balance receivable froim The Scott Trust Endowment’ Limited'is £441.2m (2022:-Enil).

The. Group paid £103,000 (2022: £113,000) to five directors (2022: three directors) of The Scott Trust Limited
for services renderéd to Guardian News & Media Limited in the tiormal coutse.of business.

The Group paid £2‘1,-_oc‘)o (2022: £2Q,OOQ) to the partner of one diréctor (2022: one) for services rendered to
Guardian News & Media Limited in tlie normal course of business at arm’s length..

The Group paid £792,000 (2022: £540,000) ‘in charitable donations and. gifts in kind to the Guardian
Foundation.

30 Parent and ultimate parent undertaking
The company's immediate and ultimate parent is:The Scott Ttust Limited.

The most senior parent entity producing publicly available financial statéments is The-Scott Trust Limited. These
-financial statements:are available upon request from The Secretary, The Scott Trust Lumted PO Box 68164,
Kings Place, 90 York Way; London N1P.2AP,
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31 Invéstmenits in subsidiaries and joint ventures:
Details of the group subsidiariés as at 2 April 2023 areas-follows:

Proportion of
Country of incorporation ownership interest
Description of shares .and principal place of and-voting rights held
Name of subsidiary held business ' : by the group
2023 2022

’ Chén,nel M Television  £1 ordinary shares England and Wales 100% 100%

Limited ,

ContentNext Media Inc $0.001 -ordinary sharés- United States of America 100% 100%

‘$0.001 pref shares

GMG B2B Limited* £1 ordinary shares: England and Wales ioo% 100%

GMG Investco 3 £0.00000000492 England and Wales 100% ' 100%

Limited* ordinary shares **

GMGRM North £1 ordinary shares England and Wales 100% 100%

Limited* -

GNM Australia Pty AUD$1 ordiniary shares  Australia 100% 100%

Limited

GPC Manchester £1 ordinary shares. England and Wales 100% 100%

Limited* ,

Guardian News & £1.0rdinary shares England and Wales: 100% 100%

Media (Holdings) .

Limited*

Guardian News & £1 ordinary shares ‘England and Wales 100% 100%.

Media Limited

Guardian Newsand Membership interest United States of Amética 100% 100%

Media LLC - . .

Northprint Manchester £1 ordinar}"éhares England and Wales 50% 50%

Limited*

‘OG Enterprises Limited ‘£1ordinary shares ~  England and Wales 100%’ 100%.

Rawnanm Liniited* £1 ordinary shares ‘England and Wales ) 60% 60%

* indicates direct investment of Guardiari Media-Group pic

** GMG Investco ‘3 Limited reduced the nominal value of its shares from £0.10 per share to £6.00000000492
per share.on.29 January 2021

The registered office for the' companies incorporated in;
« England and Wales'is PO Box 68163, Kings Place, 90 York Way, Londor, N1P 2AP:
» Australia is 19 Foster.Street, Surry Hills, NSW 2010.

+ United States of America is 160 Greentree Drive, Suite:101, Dover, DE19904
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<

Details of the group joint ventures as'at 2 April 2023 are as follows:
Proportion of

' Country of: incorporation ownership interest
Name of joint . Descriptiori of total :and principal place of -and voting rights heéld
‘ventures shares business by the group
) 2023 2022
_Ozone Project Limited  £0.01 ordinary sharess  England and Wales 17.8% 25%

* indicates direct investment of Guardian Media Group plc:
The registered office for Ozone Project Limited-is New City Court, 20-St, Thomas Street, London, SE19RS.
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) 2023 2022
.Note £m £m
Non-current assets
Investmeiits- 6 18.9 189
Investments-held at fairvalue through profit or loss' 9 7223 1,133.5
7411 . 1,152.4
‘Current assets
Trade receivables 7 483.1 38.4
Cash at bank and iti'hand 8 38.4 39.1
Investments held at faitvalue through profit or loss 9 - " 75.9
Other‘financial assets. 9 17 -
' 523.2 153.4
Current liabilities . ,
Tride and other payables 10 (81) (17.9)
Income taxliability 5 Q.7 1.3
Other current financial liabilities : 11 - (2:1)
Creditois;: Amounts falling due within one year. (17:4) (18.7)
Net current assets 505.8 134.7
Total assets less current liabilities L 1,246.9 1,287.1
Deferred tax liabilities 5 (32.9) (73.4)
Net assets excluding pension asset/(liability) 1,214.0 1,213.7°
Net pension asset/(liability) 13 2.4 (%)
Net assets 1,216.4 1,212.0
Equity
Called up share capital 12 0.9 0.9
‘Other reserves ) ' 01 - 0.1
Retained earnings : ) 1,215:4 1,211.0
Shareholders' funds ) 1,216.4 1,212.0

h}

The profitfor the year s £1.7 million (2022: £83.7 million).

These financial statements were approved by the Board on 3.July 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

CqurleS.Gur'assa o —
Chair

Thie notes on pages 66 to 74 form an integral-part of these financial statements..
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At 4 April 2022
Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income:
Dividends

" At2 April2023

At 29.March 2021
Profit for the period
‘Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income.[As r
Dividends

At 3 April 2022

The notes on pages 66 to74 forman integral part of these financial statements.

) Other Retained
Share capital reserves earnings Total
£m £m £m £m
0.9 T 04 1,211.0 1,212.0
- - 17 17
- - 31 3.1
- - 4.8 4.8
- - (0.4) (0-4)
0.9 0.1 1,215.4 1,2164
Other A Retained
Share capital reserves earnings Total
£m £m £m. £m
0.9 0:1 1,125.1 1,126.1
- - 837 83.7
- - 2.6. 2.6
- - 86.3 86.3
- - (0:4) (0.4)
0.9 0.x 1,211.0 1,212.0

%
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1 Accounting policies

Summary of significant accounting policies.:and key accounting estimates
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these finaiicial statements are set out below. These
policies. have been consistently applied to all the years presénted, vnless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101,- ‘Reduced
Disclosure Framework' (FRS101). The fiflancial statements have. been prepared under the historical cost
convention and in.accordance with Companies Act 2006.

Aseparate profit.and loss account dealing with the results of the company ] has'not been presented, as permitted
"by:Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006. The profit for the year is £1.7 million (2022: £83.7 million).

The financial statements of the company are made up to the Sunday closest to 31 March each year: Consequently,
the financial stateinents for the current period cover the 52: weeks ended.2 April 2023 and for the comiparative
period cover the 53 weeks ended 3 April 2022.

Summary of disclosure exemptions '

In these financial statements, the company has taken advantage- of the disclosure exemptions.available under FRS
101 in relation to. share-based paymerit; business combinations, .nion-current assets held for sale, financial
instrumients, fair value measurements, capital management, revenue from contracts with customiers, presentation
of comparative penod reconciliations for share capital, tangible fixed assets, intangible assets and, investment
property, piesentation of a cash-flow statemerit, the effects of new standards not yet effective, impairment of
assets and disclosures in respect of the compensation of key management personnel atid of transactions with a
management entity that provides key management personnel services to the company.

Going concern ‘ ,
The financial:statements have been prepared on a going concern basis:

Other accounting policies
All other accounting policies are as per the Group section of this report, note.2.
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2 Staff costs .

The aggregate payroll costs (including diréctors’' remuneration) were as follows:

2023 2022

) £m £m
Wages and sdlaries 0.9 0.7
Social security costs 0.1 0.
Pension costs, defined benefit scheme - 0.1
‘1.0 : 0.9

The-monthly average number of persons-employed by the group (mcludmg directors) during the-period,. analysed
by category was as follows:

2023 2022
No. No.
Administration and support 13° 12

3 Directors' remuneration

This information is shown on _pagg 40 of Guardian Media Group plc:anriual report and.financial statements.

4 Auditors' remuneration:

2023 2022
£m £m

.Audit of the financial statements 0.2 01

5 Deferredtax

The deferred tax liability recognised at year end. reiates to unrealised piofits earned from the Company’s
investments held at fair value through profit.or loss. This is offset-in part by the recognition of a deferred tax asset
‘on losses which are available to be offset against the future profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised where.they relate to losses’ where their future utilisation against
profits cannot bé reasonably foreseen,
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/
Deferred tax B
Deferred tax asséts and liabilities

Deferred tax movement during the period:

Recognised in

_other
Atg4 April Recognisedin compréhensive _ At
2022 income income 2 April 2023
£m E£m £m. © Em
Pension benefit obligations‘ 0.4 - (1.0) (0.6)

"Financial assets at fair value o
through profit orloss (81.9), 40.0 - (41.9)
Tax losses carry-forwards 8.1 15 - 9.6
(73.4) 415 (.0) (32.9)
. Deferred tax movement during the prior period:

Recognisedin

" other
Atz2g March Recognisedin comprehensive At
2021 income income 3 April 2022
£m £m £m £m
Pension benefit obligations 0.9 - (0:5). 04

Financial assets at fair value’ ) .

through profit orloss (47.6) (34.3) - (81.9)
Tax losses carry-forwards 10.3 (2.2) ‘ . - 8.1
__(364) __ (36.5) (0.5) (73.4)
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6 Investments

Subsidiaries- ' v £m

Cost orvaluation . _

-At 29-March 2021 1,183.2
-At 3 April 2022 _ ' 1,183.2.
At 4 April 2022 771.8
At 2 April 2023 : 771.8
,Pro,visioh

At 29 March 2021 7529
Charge ' 11.4
At 3 April 2022 ‘ 1,164.3
At 4 April 2022 ’ ‘ - 7529
At2 April 2023 . 4 752.9
Carrying amount '

At2 April 2023 _ 18.2
At 3 April 2022 _ 18.9
At ;29,'M8.I'Ch 2021 N : A

» Trade and other receivables ’ {
' - 2023 2022
- . . £m. £m
Receivables from telated parties ' 483.0 381
Prepayments 0.1 0.3
Total current trade and other recéivables 483.1 384
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8 Cashatbank'and in hand

Cash at bank
‘Short-term deposits

¢ Other financial assets

Non-current financial assets

Investments held at fair value through profit orloss

Current financial assets

2023

2022

Investments held atfair value through pi‘oﬁt' orloss

Derivative financial, instruments

£m £m

0.2 0.3

38.2 38.8

384 39.1
2023 2022
£m £m

722.2 1,133.5
2023 2022
£m £m

- 759

17 -

1.7 75.9

Details of investments held at fair value through profit orloss are shown in the Group section of the report in note

17.

10 Trade and other payables

Trade payables.

Accrued expenses.
Amounts-due to related parties
Other-payables

11. Other financial lidbilities

Current financial liabilities
Derjvative financial instruments

2023 2022
£'m £m
0.2. . 0a
1.5 1.4
15.6 15.6
0.8 0.8
184 17:9
2023 2022
£m £m
- 2.1
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12 Share capital
Allotted, called up and fully paid shares
2023 2022
No.m. £m No.m. £m

Qrdinary shares of £1 each 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9

13 Pension-and other schemes
Defined contribution pension sclieme

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge for the period represents
contributions payable by the Company to the scheme and amounted to.£17,032 (2022: £5,670).

Deﬁned benefit pension schemes
Trafford Park Printers 1990 Pension Scheme.

Trafford Park Printers 1990 Pension Scheme (the’ "Scheme"), is a défined benefit schéme, which provides bénefits
based on final pensionable pay. The Sclieme was closed to neiv entrants on-1 April 1998 and. closed to future,
accrual on 31 December 2006. .

The Scheme ptrovides pension beneﬁts payable to merbers (and potentially their spouses/ dependents) for life.
The level of benefits provided. depends on the members’ length of service and their sa]ary in the years.leading up
to closure to future accrual: Pensions in paymient are génerally.increased ifi line with price inflation.

The Scheme is governed by a board.of trustees, comprising trusteés appointed by the company and- trusteés:
nominated by members of the Sclieme. The board of trustees has.control over the operation of the. Scheme and its
fanding and investment strategies. Investment decisions. and agreement on contribution schedules are the joint
respon51b111ty of the Group and the trustees.

The Scheme assets are held in trusts and governed by 10&11 regulations and practice.

UK legislation requires the trustees of the Scheme to carry out an'actuarial valuation at least every three yeatsand
to' target full funding against a basis that prudently reflects thé scheme’s exposure to risk. The most recent
actuarial valuation for the Scheme was performed as at 31 March 2022 which resulted in the Scheme having
assets sifficient to cover 94% of theliabilities accrued in respect of members..

Following the valuation date there has:been significant volatility in respect-of financial market experience. The
Company -afid the. Trustees, having considered guidance from the Pension Regulator, ‘hdve agreed to make
allowance for the Scheme’s experience since the valuation date for the: purposes of determining the appropriate
Recovery Plai and Schedule of Contributions.

For. the ‘purpose -of the 31 March 2022 valuation the Recovery Plan was calculated by reference to market
conditions at 28 February 2023 which réesulted in the Schemé having assets sufficient to cover 105% of the
liabilities accrued in respect of members. As the updated results confirm a funding surplus.on the Techrical
Provisions basis, there is no requirement for a Recovery Plan to'be put in place and there will be no contributions
due to the scheme. The next triennial valuation will be carried out-as at 31 March 2025.

Contributions payable to the pensiv.;n scheme at the end of the period are £Nil (2022 - £Nil).

~-

The expected contributions to the plari for the next reporting period are £Nil.

The: valuation for the Scheme has been updated to.2 April 2023 for accounting purpose by a qualified
independent actuary.
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Investment risk
The 'scheme liabilities:are.calculated using a discount rate set. with reference to-corporate bond yields; if scheme
-assets underperform this yield (all else being equal), this will create a shortfall. The scheme holds a proportion of

equitiés, which are: expectéd to outperforri corporate bonds in the long-term but they expose the scheme.to
volatility and risk in the short-term.

Inﬂanon risk

The majority of the. pensmn obligations are linked to inflation-(i.e. the-associated increases on the pensions before
and after retirement are generally linked to price inflation). Higher inflation will lead to higher liabilities
(although some caps apply to the level of inflationary increases, which minimises the exposure to high inflation
rates). .

Life. expectancy risk

The majority of the scheme obligations are to prov1de pension benefits for the life of the member (or the lifetime
of their spouse / dependants). Thetefore, increases in life:expectancy ‘will result in an increase in the scheme
liabilities;

Reconciliation of scheme assets and liabilities to assets and liabilities recognised
The.amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

2023 ’ 2022
. £m £m
Fair-valueof scheme assets 321 411
Present value of scheme liabilities (29.7) (42.8)
Defined benefit pension:scheme surplus/(deficit) 2.4 1.7)
Scheme assets
Changes in the fair vilue of scheme assets are as:follows:
2023 2022
£m £m
Fairvalue-atstart of period ) 411 44.8
Interest income : 1.0 0.8
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in mterest \
mcome/ (expense) . ] ‘ (8.5) ‘ 3.1
Benefits paud (1.5) (1.4)
Fairvalue at end of period '32.1 411
Analysis of assets
The major categories of scheme assets are as-follows:
2023 2022
£m Em
Cash and cash equivalents . . - 0.2
Equity instrumenis 4.7 14.8
Debt instruments. ) 13.9 -
Investment funds : 6.4 4.7
Diversified credit . f - 1.9
Insuranée annuity ' ’ 7.1 9.5
321 - 411
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The perision scheme has not invested in any of the company's own financial instruments or in properties or other
assets used by the company.

Scheme liabilities
Changes in the present value of scheme liabilities are as follows:

2023 2022
. £m £m
Present value at start of-pez"iod ’ 42.8 49.6
Actuarial losses/(gains)-arising from changes in demographic
assumptions’ : ) 0.1 (0:9)
Actuarial gains arising from changes:in financial assumptions (11.9) (5_;4)
Actuarial gains arising from experience adjustments. (0.9) -
Interest cost 11 0.9
Benefits paid (1.5) (1:4)
Presentvalueat end of period 29.7 42.8

Principal déctuarial assumptions

Thesigniﬁgant.actuaria_l_as'su'mptiqns used to determine the present value of the defined benefit-obligation at the
statement of financial position date are as follows:

A

2023 ‘2022
Discount rate 4.7 2.6
Future pension increases . 3.0 3.0
Inflation . 3.5 3.6
Post retirement mortality assumptions
2023 2022
A ‘Years Years
Current UK pensioners at retirement age - imale 20.9: 20.8
Current UK pensioners at retirement age - female . 23.4 23.3
Future UK pensioners at retirement age - male- 22.1 22.0
‘Future UK pensioners at retirerent age - female . 24.8 24.8
Amounts recognised iri the income statement
2023 : 2022
£m £m
Amounts recognised in operating profit
‘Recognised iri operating profit o - -
Amounts recognised in finance incomé or costs
Net interest o : (0.1) (o)
Tota] recogpised-in the income statement (0.1) ~ (03)
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Amouints-taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income

2023 2022
£m £m
Actuarial (losses)/gains arising from changes in demographic .
assumptions (0.1) 0.9
Actuarial gains arising from changes in financial assumptions 11.9 5.4
Actuarial gains arising from experience adjustments. : 0.9 -
Return-on plan dssets, excluding amounts included in interest .
income/(expense) _ (8.5) (31)
Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income _ 4.2 3.2
14 Dividends
- 2023 2022
£m £m
Final dividend of £0.444 per each ordinary.share ' 0.4 0.4

On 21 March 2023 the Board declared a dividend of 44.4p (2022: 44:4p) per sharé on the ordinary share capital ‘
amounting t6 £400,000 (2022: £400,000) which was paid to The Scott Trust Limited on 21 March2023.

15 Parent and ultimate parent undertaking
The Company’s immediate:and ultimate parent is The Scott Trust Limited.

The ultimate parent is The Scott Trust Limited.

The most senior parerit.entity producing publicly available financial statements is The Scott Tiust Limited, These
financial statemerits are-available upon request from The. Secretary, The Scott Trust Limited, PO Box 68164,
Kings Placé, 9o York Way, London, N1P zAP

\

~

16. Related party tfahsactions

Transactions between subsidiary- members of Guardian Media Group plc are not required to be disclosed as these
transactions are fully ehmmated on consolidation.

The Company paid £642,000 (2022: £435,000) in charitable‘donations‘-’tq the Guardian Foundation. .
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